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Orlando, Philadelphia, Phoenix,
Pittsburgh, Portland, Raleigh,
Richmond, Rochester, San Francisco,
San José, Seattle, Washington



Dufry’'s Performance 2011

At constant exchange rates (CER?)

In 2011, Dufry achieved 16.5% turnover growth and an EBITDA' of 14.3% of turnover.

ACTUAL % OF ACTUAL % OF ACTUAL % OF GROWTH
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 TURNOVER AT CER22011 TURNOVER 2010 TURNOVER AT CER?
Turmover 26377 . ...30408 L 26102 16.5%
GrossProfit 15353 . %82% 17892 %82% . 15019 57.5% . 17.8%
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?Atexchange rates of same periods 2010 (acquisitions considered at actual rates)

Turnover

in millions of CHF

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

EBITDA!

in millions of CHF

+62% +13% +3% +14% +8%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

'EBITDA before other operational result

Net sales by region 2011

~| @ Europe 12%

® Africa 5%
Eurasia 8%
Central America &
Caribbean 14%
South America 34%
North America 27%

Net sales by channel 2011

‘ @ Airports 88%

® Cruise liners and seaports 4%
Downtown, hotels and resorts 3%
Railway stations and other 5%

Gross profit

in millions of CHF
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@ Adjusted net earnings without other operational result

Net sales by product categories 2011

@ Perfumes and Cosmetics 26%

@ Confectionery, Food and Catering 17%
Wine and Spirits 16%

® Watches, Jewelryand Accessories 10%
Literature and Publications 9%
Fashion, Leatherand Baggage 8%
Tobacco goods 7%

Electronics 3%
Other 4%

Net sales by market sector 2011

@ DutyFree 66%
Duty Paid 34%
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated income statement

for the year ended December 31, 2011

IN MILLIONS OF CHF

Net sales

Turnover

NOTE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling expenses

EBITDA'

2

Deprecwahon amortization and impairment

Earnmgs before interest and taxes (EBIT)

13

i

Interest expenses

Earnlngs before taxes (EBT]

19

,15.

Imcometaxes

Net earnings

ATTRIBUTABLETO:

Equity holders of the parent

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

Basic earnmgs per share

'EBITDA before other operational result
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended December 31, 2011

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Net earnings 134.9 144.8
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations U —— (105.9)
Net gain/(loss) on hedge of net investment in foreign operations (82.7) 20.9
Changesinthe fair value of interest rate swaps held as cash flow hedges . - (2.2)
Other comprehensive income before taxes 16.6 (87.2)
Income tax relating to net gain/lloss] on hedge of netinvestment 27 (6.3
Incometaxoncashflowhedges (1] | )
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 9.8 (6.0)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 26.4 (93.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 161.3 51.6
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Fquityholders ofthe parent . Y 2.9,
Non-controlling interests 48.7
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Consolidated statement of financial position

at December 31, 2011

IN MILLIONS OF CHF NOTE 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
ASSETS

Property. plantand equipment i 17, . 2259,
Intangible assets 21 2,078.6 1,188.6
Deferredtaxassets . 23 Mes 1378
Othernon-currentassets 24 ) I 384
Non-current assets 2,509.0 1,590.7
IventOTies 25 PN 3061
Tradeand creditcard receivables L L 26 BEREELY 0.8
Otheraccountsreceivable L 27 Rty 104.9
Incometaxreceivables e A 6.1,
Cashandcashequivalents i 28 D . 806
Current assets 548.5
Total assets 2,139.2
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS  EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent L Ll 8700 ... 733.7
Non-controllinginterests L 811
Totalequny 954.1 814.8
Financialdebt 32 N ey G
Deferredtaxliabilities 23 N ey 146.3
Provisions 33 N 70 31
Post-employmentbenefit obligations . . 34 . 1L, [ ot
Other non-currentliabilities L L 3B W3 %6
Non-current liabilities 1,755.1 848.5
Tradepayables o1 203.9
Flnancialdebt 32 505 353
Incometaxpayables e e, 1“2 nz
Provisions 33 N 28
Other liabilities 35 255.6 222.6
B G . 5o
Total liabilities 2,363.7 1,324.4
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 3,317.8 2,139.2




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended December 31, 2011

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

DUFRY ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Hedging
and re- Trans- NON-
Share Share  Treasury valuation lation  Retained CONTROLLING TOTAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF NOTE capital  premium shares  reserves reserves earnings Total INTERESTS EQUITY
Balance at January 1, 2011 1349 934.2 (28.7) (1.9) (199.0) (105.8)  733.7 81.1 814.8
Net earnings - - - - - 111.9 111.9 23.0 134.9
Other comprehensive income (loss) - A o T -0 e SoomA 30 e
Total comprehensive income
for the period - - - 1.0 22.4 1119 135.3 26.0 161.3
CONTRIBUTIONS BY AND
DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS:
Dividends to non-controlling
interests (250
...... 26
23
...... 13
...... 95
Totalcontributionsbyand T e
distributions to owners - 0.3 15.2 - - [(14.5) 1.0 (25.0)  (24.0)
CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES:
Changes in participation of
nen-controllinginterests . a1 T T T T T T T 20 . o
Balance at December 31, 2011 134.9 9345 (13.5) (0.9) (176.6) (8.4) 870.0 84.1 954.1
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended December 31, 2011

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Hedging
and re- Trans- NON-
Share Share  Treasury valuation lation  Retained CONTROLLING TOTAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF NOTE capital  premium shares  reserves reserves earnings TOTAL INTERESTS EQUITY
Balance at January 1, 2010 96.1 391.4 (18.2) - (87.2) 292.4 6745 323.1 997.6
Net earnings - - - - 116.6 116.6 28.2 144.8
Other comprehensive income [loss] LR T T L) AL LA A R ULES R 205 el
Total comprehensive income
for the period - - - (1.9 (111.8)  116.6 2.9 48.7 51.6
CONTRIBUTIONS BY AND
DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS:
Issueofsharecapital 29 388 5652 T T T - 80s0 ol UL
Dividends to non-controlling
interests' b.4 - - - - - - - (175.2) [1752]
224
. 1285]
...... e
120
Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 38.8 542.8 (10.5) - - (1.6)  569.5 (175.2) 394.3
CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES:
Changes in participation of
non-controllinginterests .31 . S S R R - (B13.2) (13.2) (1155 (628.7)
Balance at December 31, 2010 134.9 934.2 (28.7) (1.9) (199.0) (105.8) 733.7 81.1 814.8

" Dividends to non-controlling interests for the year ended December 31, 2010 include CHF 158.0 million in respect of the Dufry South America Ltd Merger
[see note 6.4)



Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended December 31, 2011
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IN MILLIONS OF CHF NOTE 2011 2010
Farningsbeforetaxes (EBT) T65T 165.7
ADJUSTMENTS FOR

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 13 131.5 129.5
Increase/(decrease) in allowances and provisions 158 36
Loss/[gain] on unrealized foreign exchange differences 27 28.7
R R G .- IESEEREES i
T R = N s
Cashflowbefore working capitalchanges 3683 372.8
Decrease/lincrease] in trade and other accounts receivable 9.8 (23.6)
Decrease/(increase] ininventories 5 (699 ] (32.7)
Increase/[decrease] intrade and other accounts payable 684 46.0
Cashflowfromchangesmworklng capltal .................................................... i
Cash flow generated from operations 376.6 362.5
Income tax paid (39.8) (35.5)
Netcash flows from operating activites 338 327.0
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plantand equipment 20 (65.0) (76.4)
S mtang\ble R 55 [ o R 05l
PrOJe‘é’t’S"d'ev‘e‘l.o.p.ll]"]'el"]‘t.\.r{ progress .............................................................. - IR T
Proceedsfromsaleofﬂxedassets SRR JRESUEERR
e T e N
Cash flows from ordinary investing activites 879 (93.2)
Free cash flow 248.9 233.8
Business combinations, net of cash 6.3 (743.2) (24.9)
Procecd from sale of interest in subsidiaries, netof cash 06 0.7
Cashflows from other investing activites (742.6) (24.2)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (830.5) (117.4)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings 773.4 115.2
Repa‘y‘r'ﬁ.e'm't o borrovvmgs ................................................................. Ao I Gl
Proceedsfrom/[repaymentof]loans SRR 0 IEEEape
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (2500 175.2]
Bl oftreasuryshares .............................................................. 0 IR Dael
Share capital contributions by non-controlling interests I 07 -
s \Ssuancecostspa\d ................................................................. it IS o8
o arrangementfeespmd ............................................................... o 5ol
Imter‘e‘s.t. béld ............................................................................. 7 IR 57l
Netcash flows [used in)/from financing activites 5955 (489.3)
Currencytranslationin cash 16.7 (45.0)
(Decrease)/Increase in cashand cash equivalents 1185 | (324.7)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

at the beginning of the period 80.6 405.3

. atﬂ‘wte' RGO pemod ................................................................. . ISR S0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

1. Corporate information

Dufry AG ["Dufry” or "the Company”] is a publicly listed company with headquarters in Basel, Switzerland. The
Companyisthe world’s leading travel retail company. It operates over 1,200 shops worldwide. The shares of the
Companyare listed on the Swiss Stock Exchange (SIX) and its Brazilian Depository Receipts on the BM & FBOVESPA
in Sao Paulo.

The consolidated financial statements of Dufry AG and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2011 were authorized for public disclosure in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of
the Company dated March 6, 2012.

2. Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Dufry AG and its subsidiaries ("the Group”) have been preparedin accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Dufry AG’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. The carrying values of recog-
nized assets and liabilities that are hedgeditems in fair value hedges, and are otherwise carried atamortized cost,
are adjusted to record changes in the fair values attributable to the risks that are being hedged.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Swiss francs and all values are rounded to the nearest
one hundred thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Dufry AG and entities controlled by
Dufry (its subsidiaries] as at December 31, 2011 and the respective comparative information.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such controlis lost. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using uniform accounting
policies. Allintra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group trans-
actions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Achangeinthe ownership interest of a subsidiary, withouta loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it

(i) derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, derecognizes the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest as well as derecognizes the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity
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(i) recognizes the fair value of the consideration received, recognizes the fair value of any investment retained
as well as recognizes any surplus or deficitin the income statement and

(iii) reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income to the
income statement or retained earnings, as appropriate.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the
non-controlling interestin the acquiree either at fairvalue or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable

net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in the “other operational result”.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liabil-
itywill be recognized eitherin the income statement or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contin-
gentconsiderationis classified as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Ininstances where the contingent considerationis not a financialinstrument, itis measured in accordance
with the appropriate IFRS.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

- the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

- the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

- ifthe business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
- the net recognized amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in the income statement.

Afterinitial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
ofimpairment testing, goodwill acquired ina business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when deter-
mining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

89
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b Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities (equity-accounted investees)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interestin a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but the Group does not have control or joint control over those policies.

Ajointventureis a contractualarrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
thatis subjecttojoint control (i.e. when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities
of the joint venture require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control).

During the year ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the Company did not hold any equity accounted
investments.

c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding
discounts, rebates, sales taxes or duties.

Net sales
Sales are recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the products have been transferred
to the customer. Retail sales are settled in cash or by credit card.

Advertising income
Advertising income is recognized when the services have been rendered.

d) Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are expressed in Swiss francs [CHF). Each company in the Group uses its
corresponding functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated in the functional currency using the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or on the translation of derivative financial instruments are
recognized through income statement, except where the hedges on net investments allow the recognition in the
other comprehensive income, until the respective investments are disposed of. In this case any related deferred
taxes are also accounted for in the other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in the respective functional currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of
the initial transactions.

Non-monetaryitems (held for sale or discontinued operations) measured at fairvalue in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

At the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries reporting in foreign currency are translated
into the presentation currency of Dufry (Swiss francs) using the exchange rate at the reporting date. The income
statement is translated using the average exchange rates of the respective month in which the transactions
occurred. The net translation differences are recognized in the other comprehensive income. On disposal of a
foreign entity or when control is lost, the deferred cumulative translation difference recognized within equity
relating to that particular operation is recognized in the consolidated income statement as gain or loss on sale
of subsidiaries.

Intangible assets and fairvalue adjustments identified on the acquisition of a new business [purchase price allocation)
are treated as assets and liabilities of such operation in the respective functional currency.
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Principal foreign exchange rates applied for valuation and translation:

1.1.-31.12.2011 1.1.-31.12.2010 31.12.201 31.12.2010
IN CHF AVERAGE RATES AVERAGE RATES CLOSING RATES CLOSING RATES
AUSD-USDellar . | e 10427 e 09352
1 EUR - Euro 1.2329 1.3821 1.2167 1.2518

e] Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense when incurred, except for the initial arrangement fees, which are
set-off from the bank loans and amortized over the period of the credit facility.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. The
Group did not hold any qualifying assets during the periods disclosed.

f) Pension and other post-employment benefit obligations

Pension obligations

The employees of the subsidiaries are eligible for retirement, invalidity and death benefits under local social
security schemes prevailing in the countries concerned and defined benefit and defined contribution plans
provided through separate funds, insurance plans, or unfunded arrangements. The pension plans are generally
funded through regular contributions made by the employer and the employee and through the income generated
by their capital investments.

In the case of defined contribution plans, the net periodic pension cost to be recognized in the income statement
equals the contributions made by the employer.

Inthe case of defined benefit plans, the net periodic pension cost is determined using the projected unit credit
method. The defined benefit obligation is measured as the present value of expected future payments required
to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods. The net periodic pen-
sion cost less employee contributions isincluded in the personnel expenses. Plan assets are recorded at their
fair value. Actuarial gains or losses beyond a corridor of 10% of the greater of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets arising from adjustments posted and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the income statement over the average remaining service lives of the related
plan participants.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmentis terminated before the normal retirement date, orwhenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for the benefits. The Group recognizes termination ben-
efits when it is demonstrably committed to either, terminating the employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after reporting date are
discounted to present value.

g) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the estimated
number of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected tovest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,

kAl
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if any, is recognized in the consolidated income statement such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to retained earnings.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense if the
terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognized for any modification, which increases the total
fair value of the share based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognized for the goods or services acquired, measured
initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and at the
date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is re-measured, with any changes in fair value recognized in the
consolidated income statement for the year.

h] Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Currentincome tax

Currentincome tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Currentincome tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in the same state-
ment. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Whenthe deferredtaxliability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

- Inrespectoftaxable temporarydifferences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
injointventures, whenthe timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and itis prob-
able that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

creditsand any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
assetis realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax positions not relating to items recognized in the income statement, are recognized in correlation to
the underlying transaction either as other comprehensive income or equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against currentincome tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at
that date, would be recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances changed. The
adjustment would either be treated as a reduction of goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill] if it was noted
during the measurement period or afterwards in the income statement.

i) Property, plant and equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairmentin fair value. Depreciation is computed
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

The useful lives applied are as follows:

- Buildings 15 to 20 years

- Leasehold improvements 5to 10 years

- Furniture, fixture and vehicles 4 to 10 years
- Computer hardware 5years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Land is recognized at acquisition cost and not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. Additional
costs, which extend the useful life of tangible assets, are capitalized. There are no borrowing costs recognized
that are associated with the construction of tangible assets.

The carryingamount of tangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changesin circumstances
indicate that the carryingamount of the asset may not be recoverable. The recoverable amountis the higher of an
asset’s fair value less cost to sell orits value in use.

jl Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired (separately or from a business combination]

These assets mainly comprise of concession rights and brands. Intangible assets acquired separately are
capitalized at cost and those from a business acquisition are capitalized at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, the cost modelis applied to intangible assets. The useful lives of these intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the
usefuleconomic life and assessed forimpairment wheneverthere isanindication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment an-
nually at the asset or cash generating unit level. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, any
changes are made on a prospective basis. Brands have been assessed to have indefinite useful lives and are
therefore not amortized.
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Certain concession rights are granted for periods ranging from 10 to 30 years by the relevant airport authorities.
Based on Dufry’s experience, these concession rights have been renewed in the past at little or no cost for the
Group. As aresult these concession rights are assessed as having an indefinite useful life.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the
carryingamount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amountis the
higher of an asset’s fairvalue less costs to selland its value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows (cash generating units).

U Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of historical cost or net realizable value. The historical costs are determined
using the FIFO method. Historical cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. This includes import duties, transport and handling costs and any other directly attribut-
able costs of acquisition. Purchase discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of inventories. The
net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessarytomake the sale. Inventory allowances are setupin the case of slow-moving and obsolete stock. Expired
items are fully written off.

m] Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, itis probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carryingamountis the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some orall of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An onerous
contractis considered to exist if the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obli-
gations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Restructurings

Arestructuring provision is recognized when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
and has raised avalid expectation in those affected thatit will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement
the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision
includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both
necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognized in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and
the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue.
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n) Financialinstruments
Financialassets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the ac-
quisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in the income statement.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classi-
fied asat FVTPL and AFS.

o] Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets “at fair value through profit or loss”
(FVTPL), "held-to-maturity” investments, “available-for-sale” [AFS] financial assets and “loans and receivables”.
The categorization depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL (fair value thought profit & loss]
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated
asatFVTPL.

Afinancial assetis classified as held for trading if:

- ithas been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

- oninitialrecognition itis part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has arecent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- itis aderivative thatis not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Afinancial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Rec-
ognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financialassetsat FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized
in the income statement. The net gain or loss recognized in the income statement incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other operating result” line item in the consolidated
income statement. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 38.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets [AFS financial assets)

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as
a) loans and receivables,

b] held-to-maturity investments or

c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

AFS financial assets are stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 38. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
changes in foreign currency rates [see below], interest income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in the income statement. Other changesin the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the hedging and revaluation reserves. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the hedging and revaluation reserves is reclassified to
the income statement.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in the income statement when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and credit cards receivables, other accounts
receivable, cash and cash equivalents) are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each report-
ing period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

Forall other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- itbecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, are assessed for impairment individually. For
financial assets carried atamortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, loans and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changesin the carryingamount of the allowance account are recognizedin the income statement. When
an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through the income statement to the extent that the car-
rying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Inrespect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized in the income statement are not reversed
through the income statement. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging and revaluation reserves. Inrespect of AFS debt securities,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through the income statement if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes afinancial asset onlywhen the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizesitsretained interestin the assetand an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a col-
lateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in the income statement.

On derecognition of a financial asset other thanin its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase
part of a transferred asset or retains a residual interest that does not result in the retention of substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group retains control), the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the
partit no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had
beenrecognized in other comprehensive income isrecognized in the income statement. Acumulative gain or loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be rec-
ognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

p) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity.

Debtand equityinstrumentsissued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity inaccordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct
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issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Com-
pany’s own equity instruments.

q) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities “at FVTPL" or “other financial liabilities".

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
asat FVTPL.

Afinancial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- ithas beenacquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

- oninitialrecognitionitis part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has arecent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- itisaderivative thatis not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

- suchdesignation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- thefinancial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Rec-
ognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized
inthe income statement. The net gain or loss recognized in the income statement incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability and is included in the “other operational result” line itemin the consolidated income statement.
Fairvalue is determined in the manner described in note 38.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form anintegral part of the effective inter-
est rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

Afinancial guarantee contractis a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fairvalues and, if not designated

as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- theamount of the obligation under the contract, as determinedinaccordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

- theamountinitially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consid-
eration paid and payable is recognized in the income statement.

r] Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and
foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency
swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 38.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognized in the income statement immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

s) Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when theirrisks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL.

t) Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-
derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as
cash flow hedges.

Atthe inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether
the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk.

Note 38 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognized in the
income statementimmediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable tothe hedged risk. The change in the fairvalue of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in the line of the consolidated income statement relating to
the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument
expires oris sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortized to profit or loss
from that date.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changesin the fairvalue of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
isrecognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated inthe hedging and revaluation reserves. The gain
orlossrelating to the ineffective portionis recognized immediately in the income statement, and is included in the
“interest expenses/income” line item.
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Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the
income statementin the periods when the hedged item is recognized in the income statement, in the same line of
the consolidated income statement as the recognized hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transac-
tion results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included
in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging instru-
ment expires oris sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain
or lossrecognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and
isrecognized when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognized in the income statement. When a forecast
transactionis no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognized immediately in
the income statement.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or
loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in other comprehen-
sive income and accumulated under the heading of translation reserves. The gain or loss relating to the inef-
fective portion is recognized immediately in the income statement, and is included in the “foreign exchange
gains/loss” line item.

2.4 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards and interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following
new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations:

- IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (amendment) - effective 1 January 2011

The IASB issued an amendment to IAS 24 that clarifies the definitions of a related party. The new definitions
emphasize a symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify the circumstances in which persons
and key management personnel affect related party relationships of an entity. In addition, the amendment
introduces an exemption from the general related party disclosure requirements for transactions with
government and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the same govern-
ment as thereporting entity. The adoption of the amendment did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.

- 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (amendment) - effective 1 February 2010
The IASB issued an amendment that alters the definition of a financial liability in IAS 32 to enable entities to
classify rights issues and certain options or warrants as equity instruments. The amendment is applicable
if the rights are given pro rata to all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity’s non-derivative
equity instruments, to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amountin any
currency. The amendment has had no effect on the financial position or performance of the Group because
the Group does not have this type of instruments.

- IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (amendment) - effective 1 January 2011
Theamendment removes an unintended consequence when an entity is subject to minimum funding requirements
and makes an early payment of contributions to cover such requirements. The amendment permits a prepayment
of future service cost by the entity to be recognized as a pension asset. The Group is not subject to minimum
funding requirements, therefore the amendment of the interpretation has neither affected the financial position
nor the performance of the Group.
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- IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments - effective July 1, 2010
Dufry has not entered into this type of agreements.

Improvements to IFRSs (May 2010)

In May 2010, the IASB issued its third omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifyingwording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. The adoption
of the following amendments resulted in changes to accounting policies, but no impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.

- IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendment clarifies that an entity may present an analysis of each component of other comprehensive
income eitherin the statement of changesin equity orin the notes to the financial statements. The Group provides
this analysis in Note 18.

- IERIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programs - effective January 1, 2011
Fair value of award credit: The amendment clarifies that when the fair value of awards credits is measured
based on the value of the awards for which they could be redeemed, the amount of discounts or incentives
otherwise granted to customers not participating in the awards credit scheme, is to be taken into account.

Otheramendments resulting from improvements to IFRSs to the following standards did not have any significant
impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group:
- IFRS 3 Business Combinations
- The measurement options available for non-controlling interest [NCI) were amended.
- Contingent consideration arising from business combination prior to adoption of IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008]).
- Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards.

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures
The amendmentwas intended to simplify the disclosures provided by reducing the volume of disclosures around
collateral held and improving disclosures by requiring qualitative information to put the quantitative information
in context.

- IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
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3. Critical accounting jJudgments and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
resultin outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability in
the future.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation include uncertainties at the re-
porting date, which may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carryingamounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial periods, are discussed below.

Concession rights

Concessionrights acquiredin abusiness combination are measured at fairvalue as at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of operating concessions are assessed to be either finite or indefinite based on individual circumstances.
The useful lives of operating concessions are reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite useful life as-
sessment for those concessions continues to be sustainable. The Group annually tests the operating concessions
with indefinite useful lives forimpairment. The underlying calculation requires the use of estimates. The comments
and assumptions used are disclosed in note 21.

Brands and Goodwill
The Group tests these items annually for impairment. The underlying calculation requires the use of estimates.
The comments and assumptions used are disclosed in note 21.

Income taxes

The Group is subject toincome taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
taxassessmentisuncertain. The Group recognizes liabilities for tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax or deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
assessment is made. Further details are given in note 16.

Deferred tax assets

Deferredtaxassetsarerecognized forallunused tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details are
given in note 23.

Provisions
Management makes assumptions in relation to the expected outcome and cash outflows based on the development
of eachindividual case. Further details are given in note 33.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fairvalue of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Estimating fair value requires determining the most appropriate valuation model fora
grantof equity instruments, which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This also requires determining
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the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend
yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used are disclosed in note 30.

Pension and other post-employment benefit obligations

The cost of defined benefit pension plansis determined using actuarialvaluations. The actuarial valuation involves
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pensionincreases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant
uncertainty. Further details are given in note 34.

Purchase price allocation

The determination of the fair values of the identifiable assets (especially the concession rights) and the assumed
liabilities (especially the contingent liabilities recognized as provisions), resulting from business combinations, is
based onvaluation techniques such as the discounted cash flow model. Some of the inputs to this model are partially
based on assumptions and judgments and any changes thereof would affect the reported values [see note 6).

4. New and revised standards and interpretations in issue
but not yet adopted/effective

The Group will apply the following standards or changes to standards for the first time following the dates stated
in the respective standard.

Standards and interpretations that are relevant for the Group and whose effects are currently being evaluated

- IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation (Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income) - effective
July 1,2012
The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income. Items that
could be reclassified (or “recycled”) to the income statement at a future point in time (for example, upon derecog-
nition or settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified. The amendment
affects presentation only and has no impact on the Group's financial position or performance.

- IAS 19 Employee Benefits [Amendment) - effective January 1, 2013
The IASB hasissued numerous amendments to IAS 19. These range from fundamental changes such as removing
the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-
wording. If the amendments would have been adopted in 2011 the equity in the consolidated financial statements
would have been lower by approximately CHF 8.3 million representing the unrealized actuarial losses whereas
the income statement would have been impacted by additional expenses of CHF 0.7 million.

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements) - effective
July 1, 2011
The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not derec-
ognizedto enable the user of the Group's financial statements to understand the relationship with those assets
that have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment requires disclosures
about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’'s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets. The amendment affects
disclosure only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

- IFRS 9 Financial instruments - effective January 1, 2015
IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classi-
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fication and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. In subsequent phases,
the IASB will address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of the first phase of
IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets, but will poten-
tially have no impact on classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The Group will quantify the
effectin conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture.

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - effective January 1, 2013

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to
exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be
consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in |AS 27.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities - effective January 1, 2013

IFRS 12includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements,
aswell as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. These disclosures relate to
an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new
disclosures are also required.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - effective January 1, 2013

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not
change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value
under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact that this
standard will have on the financial position and performance.

Further new and revised standards and interpretations of no practical relevance:
- 1AS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets amendments to IAS 12 - effective January 1, 2012

IAS 12 has been updated to include a presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using
the fair value modelin IAS 40 and on non-depreciable assets measured using the revaluation modelin IAS 16,
should always be measured on a sale basis.

- IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011) - effective January 1, 2013

Asaconsequence of the newFRS 10and IFRS 12, what remains of IAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements. The Group does not present separate
financial statements.

- 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011) - effective January 1, 2013

Asaconsequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, IAS 28 has been renamed IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in
addition to associates.

- IAS 32 [amendments] Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - effective January 1, 2014

The amendments address inconsistenciesin current practice when applying the offsetting criteriain IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation. The amendments clarify: a) the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off”; and b) that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to
net settlement.

- IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures (amendment) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabilities -

effective January 1, 2013

These disclosures will provide users with information that is useful in (a) evaluating the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position and (b) analyzing and comparing financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs and US GAAP.
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- IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - effective January 1, 2013
IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using
proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for
using the equity method.

- IFRIC 20 The Interpretation clarifies when production stripping of a surface mine should lead to the recogni-
tion of an asset and how that asset should be measured, both initially and in subsequent periods - effective
January 1, 2013

5. Segment information

An operating segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subjecttorisks and returnsdifferent from those of other operating segments. Transfer prices between operations
and segments are set on an arm’s length basis. Where sales, expenses or the result include transfers between
segments, those transfers are eliminated in the consolidation.

The Group's risks and returns are predominantly affected by the fact that it operates in different countries. There-
fore, the Group reports segmental information as it does internally to the group executive committee, using
geographical segments. The activities of the distribution centers are reported as a separate segment.

2011 NET SALES ADVERTISING NET SALES -

IN MILLIONS OF CHF THIRD PARTY INCOME INTERCOMPANY TURNOVER EBITDA!
Burope 2998 A5 T 3043 12.3
Africa 136.9 1.2 - 138.1 18.6
Euasia 224 830 - 2184 173
Central America & Caribbean . L s642 L Al T 383 L 289
South America 864.7 21.2 - 885.9 139.2
NorthAmerica A 234 - 7005 770
Distribution Centers 58 . 9.4 6902 . nes4 T8
Eliminations SR - Mol (e02) -
bufryGroup 2,560.9 76.8 - 2,637.7 370.9
2010 NET SALES ADVERTISING NET SALES -

IN MILLIONS OF CHF THIRD PARTY INCOME INTERCOMPANY TURNOVER EBITDA!
BUTOPe 060 A8 T S108 T4
Africa 182.3 1.8 - 184.1 29.3
Euasia o asd A0 - 291 12
Central America & Caribbean 3985 45 T 4000 23.6
SouthAmerica 6933 200 T 33 136.5
North America 7307 B T 7958 . 78.9
Distribution Centers ] 0.6 ... tes el 5322 . 56.2
Eliminations SRR S G151 G150 -
Dufry Group 2,533.5 76.7 - 2,610.2 343.1

'EBITDA before other operational result.

The share in net sales to third parties of the Group generated in Switzerland (domicile] represents about 1.2%
(2010: 1.3%) of the total.
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CAPITAL DEPRECIATION OTHER
201 TOTAL TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENDITURE AND AMOR- NON-CASH
IN MILLIONS OF CHF ASSETS LIABILITIES EXPENSE PAID TIZATION' ITEMS
Burope ] 2032 987 8 (42 k2 3.5
Africa 66.8 37.8 (1.4) (1.4) 49 1.9
Euasia 183 s28 22 W& 82 (0§
Central America & Caribbean 4293 838 0.6 .. (s.8 239 3.0
SouthAmerica 10970 2737 (293 (2700 347 4.7
NorthAmerica 5539 1034 s e 403 0.4
Distribution Centers 315 1827 na (05 10 49
Unallocated positions 5078 15328 4 (e A3 46
Dufry Group 3,317.8 2,363.7 (28.2) (95.0) 131.5 22.5
CAPITAL DEPRECIATION OTHER
2010 TOTAL TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENDITURE AND AMOR- NON-CASH
IN MILLIONS OF CHF ASSETS LIABILITIES EXPENSE PAID TIZATION? ITEMS

........ 2134 1048 s 2T

T2 e ae (231 6.0

......... 86.6 405 L s 100

........ 4029 724 Lo has 283

........ 5356 2294 L ms 200

........ 5450 933 83 Be4 468

........ 1940 1183 oo 18

......... 89.6 . 6166 o les 38

Dufry Group 2,139.2 (98.8) 129.5

12011 includes impairments of CHF 1.3 million in Region Europe.
22010 includes impairments of CHF 0.1 million in Region Europe.

The unallocated liabilities correspond mainly to long-term financial debt whereas the unallocated assets comprise
those of Headquarter companies.
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6. Business combinations
2011 Transactions
6.1 Acquisition of Interbaires and other companies in Armenia, Ecuador and Uruguay

OnAugust 4, 2011, continuing with its strategy of investing in emerging markets, the Group acquired 100% of the shares

and obtained control of several companiesin South Americaandin Armenia, for a total consideration of CHF 753.9 mil-

lion (USD 987.2 million). The main companies incorporated into the group are:

- Interbaires SA: The exclusive retailer operating duty free shops at both international airports of Buenos Aires plus
the airports of Cordoba, Mendoza and other smaller destinations in Argentina,

- Navinten SA and Blaicor SA: Two Uruguayan retailers operating duty free shops at the international airports of
Montevideo and Punta del Este respectively,

- ADF Shops CJSC: An Armenian retailer operating exclusively the duty free shops at the international airport of
Yerevan,

- Ecuador Duty Free SA: Aretailerin Ecuador operating duty free shops at the international airport of Guayaquil, and

- International Operation & Services Corp, an Uruguayan distribution platform delivering duty free products to the
above mentioned retailers.

As aresult of the acquisition the Group achieved a leading position in the Duty Free market in South America. The
Group is integrating the new businesses into its existing organization and in this way generating considerable
synergies. The acquisitions have been accounted for using the acquisition method. The financial statements of the
Group include the results of all the above mentioned companies as well as some intermediate holding entities as
from the acquisition date. The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired companies at the
date of acquisition and the resulting goodwill were determined preliminary as follows:

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

AUGUST 4, 2011

IN MILLIONS OF USD PRELIMINARY FAIR VALUE

O OT IS 78

................................. 62.4

................................. 203

............................... 576.3

............................... (40.6),

(41.2)

............................... (82.0)

Identifiable net assets 587.0

B 400.2

Total consideration 987.2
Cash flow on the acquisition:

IN MILLIONS OF USD 201

Total consideration (987.2)

Cashacquiredwiththe transaction ] 267

Subtotal (962.5)

Payables for this acqusition at the end of the period -

Net cash outflow (962.5
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Acquisition related expenses, included in the other operationalresultin the income statement for the period ended
December 31,2011 amounted to CHF 11.1 million (USD 12.5 million).

In the period ended December 31, 2011 these operations contributed CHF 171.4 million (USD 195.6 million] in
turnover and CHF 34.4 million (USD 39.2 million) in EBITDA! to the consolidated income statement of the Group.

6.2 Acquisition of Sovenex SAS, Martinique

On September 14, 2011, the Group acquired through a share deal 100% of the shares of Sovenex SAS, a retailer
operating the duty free shops at the international airport of Martinique (France] for a total consideration of
CHF 7.0 million (EUR 6.1 million]. As a result of the acquisition, the Group expects toincrease its presence in the
French Caribbean and to improve profitability through economies of scale. The goodwill will not be deductible
for tax purposes.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method. These financial statements include the
results of Sovenex SAS as of September, 2011. The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired
company at the date of acquisition and the resulting goodwill were determined preliminary as follows:

IN MILLIONS OF EUR SEPTEMBER 14, 2011
Cash 5.4
Contingent consideration 0.7
Total consideration 6.1

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

IN MILLIONS OF EUR PRELIMINARY FAIR VALUE
Inventories 0.6
Oherassers
Property, plant and equipment 0.1
Concesgmnmghtg .................................................................................................. 52
et doferrad bmty .......................................................................................... [.1. 7]
o [.1. ‘1‘].
omttioblo mat aaaate 64
GO 0.7
T otaL oS o

Cash flow on the acquisition:

IN MILLIONS OF EUR 201
Totalconsideration (e.1)
Cashacquiredwiththe transaction 20
Subtotal (4.1)
Payables for this acqusition at the end of the period 1.9

Net cash outflow (2.2)




DUFRY ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Acquisition related expenses, included in the other operational result in the income statement for the period ended
December 31,2011 amounted to CHF 0.2 million (EUR 0.2 million).

In the period ended December 31, 2011 this operation contributed CHF 2.8 million (EUR 2.3 million) in net sales
and CHF 0.4 million (EUR 0.4 million) in EBITDA! to the consolidated income statement of the Group.

If all business combinations of 2011 would have occurred as of the beginning of the current reporting year, the
Group would have generated a turnover of CHF 2,855.8 million and an operative result of CHF 413.0 million

6.3 Reconciliation of cash flows (used for)/from business combinations (BC), net of cash

CHANGES

2011 COST OF THE NET CASH IN ACCOUNTS NET CASH
IN MILLIONS OF CHF ACQUISITION ACQUIRED SUBTOTAL PAYABLES FLOW
Interbaires and other companies (7539 189 (73500 - (735.0]
Sovenex SAS, Martinique (France) (7.0) 2.3 (4.7) 2.2 (2.5)
NetworkltaliaEdicole - -l 44
PuertoRico SRR - - 09 (0.9)
Other 04 - 04 - (0.4
Total (761.3) 21.2 (740.1) (3.1) (743.2)

2010 Transactions
6.4 Merger with Dufry South America Ltd

On December 31, 2009, Dufry AG owned 51% of the shares of Dufry South America Ltd. ("DSA"] which operates
duty free shopsin South America. On February 11,2010, Dufry South America Ltd., Bermuda; Dufry AG ("DAG")
and Dufry Holdings & Investments AG, Basel ("DHI"), a wholly-owned Swiss subsidiary of DAG, entered into a
Merger and Amalgamation Agreement, providing for an amalgamation under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
and a merger under applicable Swiss law. Simultaneously with the completion of the Merger, the capital of DHI
has increased by a contribution in kind consisting of 49% of the net assets of DSA.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement negotiated between the Special Committee of Board Members of DSA
("SCBM") and the Board of Directors of DAG, DSA shareholders and DSA Brazilian Depositary Receipt holders
("BDR") received one DAG share (or DAG BDR) in exchange for 4.10 DSA shares/BDRs ("Exchange Ratio”).
Furthermore, DSA shareholders and BDR holders received an extraordinary dividend of USD 4.71 per DSA
share/BDR on April 12, 2010.

The newshares of DHI created in course of the Merger were contributed into DAG in exchange for 7,762,249 shares
newly issued and BDRs of DAG ("Merger Shares”]. Such Merger shares were then allocated and given to the
shareholders of DSAand to the holders of DSA BDRs, respectively. DAG listed its shares through a BDR program
in Brazil with the BDRs being traded on BM&FBOVESPA.

The Special General Meeting of the members of DSA ("SGM”) held on March 19, 2010 and an Extraordinary
Shareholders Meeting of Dufry AG ("EGM"] held on March 22, 2010, discussed, evaluated and approved the rel-
evant aspects of the Merger Agreement.
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IN THOUSANDS IN THOUSANDS
OVERVIEW OF MERGER TRANSACTIONS OF USD OF CHF
Fquity DSAas of March 22,2010 98T
less dividend approved in relation with the merger (306,150)
Equity of DSAas per March 22,2010 486037
Portion acquired (48.96%) 237,964
Book value of non-controlling interests athistoricalcost T
Currency translation adjustments (25,419)
Carryingamount of these non-controlling interests . . 87481 ] 92,196
Goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interests
notrecognized inthe books of the parent i 190482 .
Contribution in kind 603,981
Recogmzedd.rect[y m reserves fortra nsacnons ...............................................................................
with non-controlling interest 511,785

6.5 Dufry (Shanghai) Commercial Co. Ltd., China

Dufry founded in February 2010 Dufry (Shanghai)l Commercial Co. Ltd. Thereafter Dufry signed a 7-year contract
with Shanghai Honggiao International Airport to operate 20 duty paid stores, distributed over an area of 1,500 m?,
inthe new West Terminal. Serving mainly domestic destinations, Honggiao International Airport handles more than
23 million passengers peryear and is considered one of the two main gates for travelers arriving to and departing
from Shanghai. The West Terminal, and thus our 20 shops, became operational end of March 2010, just ahead of
the opening of the Shanghai 2010 World Expo.

Since the start of operations Dufry (Shanghai] Commercial Co. Ltd contributed in 2010 CHF 16.1 million to the net
sales, and reduced CHF 2.0 million the earnings before interest and taxes, of the Group.

6.6 Global Service Retail Group

As of May 19, 2010, Dufry acquired the remaining 49% of the voting shares of Global Service Retail Group (GSRL]
for a price of CHF 2.8 million from the minority shareholder. The difference of CHF 1.2 million between the book

value of the additional interest acquired and the respective consideration has been recognized in the reserve for
transactions with non-controlling interest.

6.7 Reconciliation of cash flows (used for)/from business combinations (BC), net of cash

2010 COST OF THE NET CASH IN Agggsﬁ$§ NET CASH
IN MILLIONS OF CHF ACQUISITION ACQUIRED SUBTOTAL PAYABLES FLOW
Global Retail Services 8 -~ . 28 - (2.8)
OperadoraAero-Boutiques (LDF) = SRR - - (182 (18.2)
Network ltalia Edicole SRR - - . (2.6 (2.6
Puerto Rico - - - (1.1) (1.1
PURIIORIE i ERRER - [— - AL e




7. Net sales

Different breakdowns of net sales are as follows:

Net sales by product categories:

DUFRY ANNUAL REPORT 2011

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Rerfumesand Cosmetics . R 588.9
Confectionery, Foodand Catering .. O 441.2
Literature and Publications 291.2
Watches, Jewelryand Accessories ... S 249.4
Fashion. Leatherand Baggage ool o 2820 199.0
Tobaccogoods . N 192.1
Hlectromics . 85.4
Toys, Souvenirsandother goods . OB 1029
Total 2,533.5
Net sales by market sector:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Duty free 1,690.3 1,604.5
DU RRI0 8706 929.0
Total 2,560.9 2,533.5
Net sales by channel:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
ATBOTIS e ECE 2.2135
Cruiselinersandseaports e 3.0
Railwaystationsandother ... e 8.4
Downtown hotelsandresorts .. 207 88.6
Total 2,560.9 2,533.5

m
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8. Cost of sales

Cost of sales are recognized when the Company sells a product and comprise the purchase price and the costincurred
until the product arrives at the warehouse, i.e. import duties, transport and third parties handling cost as well as
inventory valuation adjustments and inventory differences.

9. Selling expenses

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Concessionfeesandrents . | bass)h (572.8)
Credit card commissions (31.2) (29.5)
Advert|5|ng and commlssm expenses ........................................................... [139] ............ [129]
Packagingmaterials ... _....®B8 84
Other selling expenses (10.9) (6.4)
S é'l'lin‘g‘ expenses ............................................................................ [6234] ........... [6300]
Concession and rentalincome 14.6 19.7
Commssmnmcome 20 25
Commercial services and other sellingincome 71 23.0
S ékl'lin‘g mcome ............................................................................... 437 ............ 452
Total (579.7) (584.8)

10. Number of retail shop concessions

Dufry Group operates around 1,200 retail shops in 45 countries at the reporting date. Dufry has entered into conces-
sion arrangements with operators of airports, seaports, railway stations etc. to operate these retail shops.

The concession providers grant the right to sell a pre-defined assortment of products to travelers during the
concession period as defined in the respective arrangements.

The arrangements typically define among other aspects:
- duration

- nature of remuneration

- assortment of products to be sold

- location

They may comprise one or several shops and are awarded in a public or private tender orin a negotiated transaction.

The leasehold improvements and installations of these operations are depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the assets or the duration of the arrangements.
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11. Personnel expenses

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Salariesandwages (8o25 (303.2)
Socialsecurityexpenses (56.6) (54.4)
Retirement benefits (defined contributionplans) @2 (3.4
Retirement benefits (defined benefitplans) e (1.3
Otherpersonnelexpenses (885 (36.6)
Total (402.6) (398.9)
Number of full time equivalents at year-end 13,874 11,892

12. General expenses

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Repairs, maintenance and utilities 336 ] (32.9)
Legal, consultingand auditfees B (31.2)
Premises oo o (22.2)
Office and administration (17.1)
Travel, car, entertainmentand representation (el (16.1
EDPandITexpenses o lso (149
Franchise feesand commercial services o7 (11.3)
Taxes,other thanincometaxes g (9.3
PRandadvertising b (9.7)
Insurances o bba (6.6
Bankexpenses R ot (3.8)
Total (182.1) (175.1)
13. Depreciation, amortization and impairment

IN MILLIONS OF CHF NOTE 201 2010
Depreciation ] (652 | (63.6)
Impairment @e (0.1
Total property plantand equipment 19 (58.8) (63.7)
Amortization (2.4 (65.8)
Impairment (0.3) -
Totalintangible assets 21 (72.7) (65.8)

Total (131.5) (129.5)
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14. Other operational result

Other operational expenses and other operational income include non-recurring transactions, impairments of
financial assets and provisions.

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 20m 2010

Transaction costs

Consulting fees and expenses related to projects, aswell as start-up expenses (63 (7.3)
Closingorrebrandingofshops B2 (4.1)
Expensesforprovisions e (0.8
Impairment of financialassets b2 (1.1
Lossesonsaleofnon-currentassets 3 (0.6]
Otherexpenses R (ot (4.3]
Subtotal other operational expenses (29.1) (18.2)
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Gainonsaleofnon-currentassets .0
Recoveryofwrite offs/release ofallowances =08
Releaseofprojectcosts - . 0.1
Otherincome 05 13
Subtotal other operationalincome 2.2 2.5
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Otheroperationalexpenses N (18.2)
Otheroperationalincome 2228
Other operational result (26.9) (15.7)
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Interestincome on short-termdeposits A 43
Otherinterest and finance income - 0.5
Totalinterestincome 4.1 4.8
Interest on bank debt (42.2) (31.3)
Amortization of creditarrangementfees e (4.8)
Discountedinterest on financial liabilities 02 (0.3
Otherfinance expenses U 1) R (0.5
Interest expense on financial liabilities (55.2) (36.9)
Interest on non-financial instruments - (0.1)

Totalinterest expense (55.2) (37.0)
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16. Income taxes

Consolidated income statement:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010

Currentincome taxes w7 [419]

............. (41.3)

(0.6)

2

............. 160

............... 52

........... (0.2

(20.9)

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010

Consolidated earnings beforeincome tax [EBT) 1631 165.7

Expectedtaxratein® 295% 28.0%

Taxattheexpectedrate 4] (46.4)
EFFECT OF:

Income not subjecttoincometax W44 149

Different tax rates of subsidiaries in other jurisdictions 263 26.5

Different tax regime for sale of subsidiaries 0402

Nondeductible expenses (46 (6.1

Unused tax loss carry-forwards notrecognized o7 (8.3

Nonrecoverablewithholdingtaxes 67 (.9

Adjustments recognized in relation toprioryear VA 46

Otheritems o7 (4.4

Total (28.2) (20.9)

The expected tax rate used for 20111is29.5% (2010: 28.0%). The tax rate approximates the weighted average based
onnetsales of the countries where Dufryis active. The increase in the expected tax rate comes from Ghana +8%,
Bolivia +9% and the mix effect from the newly incorporated companies, i.e. Argentina 35%, Uruguay 25%, Ecua-
dor 25% and Armenia 20%.

Current tax assets and liabilities:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Incometaxrefundsreceivable e 61
Incometaxpayable w2 1.7
Total (10.8) (5.6)

Income tax receivables or payables for the current and prior period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amounts are those
that are enacted at the reporting date.
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Income tax recognized directly in equity:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
CURRENT TAX

Current taxeffect on share based payments 85 24
Subtotal 3.5 2.4
DEFERRED TAX

Taxeffectonsharebasedpayments ce 14
Taxeffectontreasuryshares 15 06
Subtotal (2.3) 2.0
Total 1.3 4.4

Deferred income tax recognized in other comprehensive income:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 20m 2010

ARISING ON INCOME AND EXPENSES RECOGNIZED
INOTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Netgain/(loss) on hedge of netinvestment 99 (6.3]
Cashflowhedges on 03
Total 9.8 (6.0)

17. Earnings per share

Basic
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

IN MILLIONS OF CHF/QUANTITY 2011 2010
Net earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent 111.9 116.6
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 29175 25,166
Basic earnings per share in CHF 416 4.63
Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average num-
ber of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

IN MILLIONS OF CHF/QUANTITY 20m 2010

Net earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent 111.9 116.6

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding adjusted for
the effect of dilution 26,873 25,447

Diluted earnings per share in CHF 4.16 4.58




Earnings per share adjusted for amortization (cash EPS)
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Dufryis presenting an adjusted EPS, so called Cash EPS, where the net earnings attributable to equity holders of
the parent are adjusted by the amortization effect generated by the intangible assets identified during the purchase
price allocations of past acquisitions. With this Cash EPS, Dufry aims to facilitate the comparison at EPS level with

other companies not having performed such acquisition activities.

IN MILLIONS OF CHF/QUANTITY 2011 2010
Net earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent 111.9 116.6
ADJUSTED FOR:
Dufry’'s share of the amortization in respect of acquisitions 57.3 47.9
Adjustednetearnings e 1645
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding . S il 25,166
EPS adjusted for amortization (cash EPS) in CHF 6.30 6.54
Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
IN THOUSANDS 2011 2010
Outstanding shares 20T 25,254
Lessreasury sNares e, (0] I (88.0]
Used for calculation of basic earnings per share 26,873 25,166
EFFECT OF DILUTION:
Shareoptions . = [ Gited
Used for calculation of earning per share adjusted for the effect of dilution 26,873 25,447
For movements in shares see note 29.1 Equity, 30.1 Share-based payment and 30.3 Treasury shares.
18. Components of other comprehensive income

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Hedging & NON-

2011 Revaluation Translation CONTROLLING TOTAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF reserves reserves Total INTERESTS EQUITY
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations - 95.2 95.2 3.0 98.2
Net gain/(loss) on hedge of net investment in foreign
OPETAtIONS | T B27) G270 -~ .- ez
Income tax effect - 9.9 9.9 - 9.9
Subtotal - (72.8) (72.8) - (72.8)
Changesin the fairvalue of interest rate swaps held as
cashflowhedges . L T [ T [ [}
Income taxeffect O T O -
Subtotal 1.0 - 1.0 - 1.0
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1.0 22.4 23.4 3.0 26.4

17
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ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Hedging & NON-

2010 Revaluation Translation CONTROLLING TOTAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF reserves reserves Total INTERESTS EQUITY
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations - (126.4) (126.4) 20.5 (105.9)
Net gain/(loss) on hedge of net investment in foreign

OPETAIONS T 209 209 - . 20.9
Income tax effect - (6.3) (6.3) - (6.3)
Subtotal - 14.6 14.6 - 14.6

Changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps held as
cash flow hedges

Subtotal

Other comprehensive income [loss) (1.9 (111.8) (113.7) 20.5 (93.2)
19. Property, plant and equipment

201 LEASEHOLD FURNITURE COMPUTER WORK IN

IN MILLIONS OF CHF IMPROVEMENTS FIXTURE HARDWARE VEHICLES PROGRESS TOTAL
AT COST

BalanceatJanuaryl,2011 202 1569 4340 7001600 428.5
Business combinations &6 08 08 01 720 188
Additions (note 20) 63.2
Disposals . wm el 08 leel 04 (153
Reclassificationwithinclasses 15 81 06 o2 "
Reclassification tointangibleassets - - oo e (0.1
Currencytranslationadjustment 04 06 03 - 13 2.8
Balance at December 31, 2011 494.4
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

BalanceatJanuary1,2011 837 | (835 (293 W7 - (201.2)
Additions mote 13) (253 (2301 . 6.0 . 09 S (55.2]
Disposals Tz 55 0.4 0.6 - . 13.7
Currencytranslationadjustment - 3 T 1 - . (0.4]
Balance at December 31, 2011 (101.8) (101.3) (34.9) (5.1) - (243.1)
IMPAIRMENT

BalanceatJanuary1,2011 0 o1 2 SRR - . (1.4)
Impairment [note 13) 20 o8 4 SR 04 (3.6]
Currencytranslation adjustments 01 3 - - - . 0.2)
Balance at December 31, 2011 (3.0) (1.2) (0.6) - (0.4) (5.2)
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2010 LEASEHOLD FURNITURE COMPUTER WORK IN

IN MILLIONS OF CHF IMPROVEMENTS FIXTURE HARDWARE VEHICLES PROGRESS TOTAL
AT COST

Balance at January 1, 2010 1991 1741 431 7.9 8.9 4331
Additionslnote20 227 10 70 08 32 767
Disposals on- .. ey ... B0 8 . on (30.7)
Reclassificationwithinclasses =~ 28 n7 08 ... T (253 -
Reclassification tointangibleassets SRR SRR SRR SRR o3 (0.3
Currencytranslationadjustment (193 (232) . 4.5 9 . 2.4 (50.3)
Balance at December 31, 2010 205.2 156.9 43.4 7.0 16.0 428.5

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

BalanceatJanuary1,2010 68.5) | 86.9) .. @97 o - . (190.0]
Additions (note 13) (28.6) (27.9) (5.9) (1.2) - (63.6)
D|sposals ............................................ S U Sy s - o
Currencytranslationadiustment 47 183 3407 -2k
Balance at December 31, 2010 (83.7) (83.5) (29.3) (4.7) - (201.2)
IMPAIRMENT

Balance at January 1, 2010 (1.2) (0.1) (0.2) - - (1.5)
Impa|rment[note S o R SR R - [
CurrencytranslanonadJustment ....................... RS R U R - o
S 312010 ........................ o o oo S - R i
CARRYING AMOUNT

At December 31, 2011 128.8 70.2 15.9 2.3 28.9 2461
At December 31,2010 120.4 73.3 13.9 2.3 16.0 225.9

19.1 Impairment

The impairment loss in 2011 relates to certain shops in Europe (CHF 1.3 million) and USA (CHF 1.7 million).

20. Cash flow used for purchase of property, plant
and equipment

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Payables for capital expenditure at the beginning of the period 4o (15.8)
Businesscombinations @9 -
Additions of property, plantand equipment (note 19) (€32 (76.7)
Payables for capital expenditure at the end of the period o 14.0
Currency translation adjustment 0.1 2.1

Total Cash Flow (65.0) (76.4)
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21. Intangible assets

CONCESSION RIGHTS
2011 Indefinite Finite
IN MILLIONS OF CHF lives lives BRANDS GOODWILL OTHER TOTAL
AT COST
BalanceatJanuary 1,201 625 7692 1589 3385 581 13872
Businesscombinations S - 3083 A
Additions [seenote 22) L T 2o T T 227 239
Disposals . T o8 SRR S (1.3) (2.1)
Reclassifications from property, plant
andequipment S S S S 01 0.1
Currencytranslationadjustment 03 1069 T 05 12 1.8
Balance at December 31, 2011 612 1,337.2 158.9 715.3 815  2,354.1
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance at January 1, 2011 - (168.4) - - (29.1) (197.5)
Mdtons ot 1) g D g g
Disposals i T 03 L T T 10 s
Currency translationadjustment S L S S [T 5.7)
Balance at December 31, 2011 - (234.6) - - (39.7)  (274.3)
IMPAIRMENT
BalanceatJanuary 1.2011 T e T 0.8 E
Additions [note 13}~~~ S S S S (0.3
Disposals T S S S 02
Currencytranslationadjustment . VTN ) S T T 01 B
Balance at December 31, 2011 - (0.4) - (0.8) - (1.2)
CONCESSION RIGHTS
2010 Indefinite Finite
IN MILLIONS OF CHF lives lives BRANDS GOODWILL OTHER TOTAL
AT COST
BalanceatJanuary1,2010 1821 7875 1499 3898 52.7
Additions [seenote 22 T 72 6.6 . T 1.6
Disposals . . T 0.4 . S SR 132}
Reclassification . . 47 84T T T 0.3
Currencytranslationadjustment (1491 (90.6) 24 (513 (4.6]
Balance at December 31,2010 62.5 769.2 158.9 338.5 58.1
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance at January 1, 2010 - (139.2) - - (21.1)
Additions[note 13 ) - - )
Disposals T 04 T T 1
Currencytranslationadjustment T 253 SR S 2.1
Balance at December 31, 2010 - (168.4) - - (29.1)
IMPAIRMENT
BalanceatJanuary1,2010 2 oy T 9 S )
Reclassification ] 0.2 . 2 . T T - -
Currencytranslationadjustment SRR SR SR 01 -
Balance at December 31, 2010 - (0.3) - (0.8) -
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CONCESSION RIGHTS

Indefinite Finite
IN MILLIONS OF CHF lives lives BRANDS GOODWILL OTHER TOTAL

CARRYING AMOUNT
At December 31, 2011 61.2 1,102.2 158.9 714.5 41.8 2,078.6
AtDecember 31,2010 62.5 600.5 158.9 337.7 29.0 1,188.6

21.1 Goodwill recognized from business combinations in 2011

Interbaires and other companies in Armenia, Ecuador and Uruguay:

On August 4, 2011, continuing with its strategy of investing in emerging markets, the Group acquired 100% of the
shares and obtained control of several companiesin South and Central America and Asia, for a total consideration
of CHF 753.9 million (USD 987.2 million). The goodwill resulting from the purchase price allocation was CHF 305.4 mil-
lion (USD 400.2 million).

Sovenex SAS:

On September 14, 2011, the Group acquired through a share deal 100% of the shares of Sovenex SAS, a retailer oper-
ating the duty free shops at the international airport of Martinique (France) for a total consideration of CHF 7.0 million
(EUR 6.1 million). The goodwill resulting from the purchase price allocation was CHF 0.9 million (EUR 0.7 million).

21.2 Goodwill recognized from business combinations in 2010

Network Italia Edicole:

On September 14, 2009, the Group acquired all shares of Network Italia Edicole S.r.l. for a total consideration of
EUR 12 million. The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired company has been determined
during 2010. Dufry recognized in 2009 additional concession rights of CHF 25.9 million, which will be amortized
along the 18 years contract duration and an associated deferred tax liability of CHF 8.1 million. No goodwill was
recognized in relation with this transaction.

21.3 Impairment test

Concessionrights with indefinite useful lives, aswell as brands and goodwill are subject toimpairment tests each
year. Concession rights with finite useful lives are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances indi-
cate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

21.3.1 Impairment test of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill recognized from business combinations has been allocated to
the following six cash generating units (CGU’s). These groups also reflect the reportable segments that are ex-
pected to benefit from the synergies of the business combinations:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Europe 8.3 13.8
AT o i
S . IR s
B R 55 . I o
F e L I it
R . . b

Total carrying amount of goodwill 714.5 337.7
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The recoverable amounts of goodwill for each of the above group of CGU’s have been determined based onvalue-
in-use calculations. Such calculations are based on business plans approved by senior management and use
cash flow projections covering a five-year period aswell as adiscount rate, which represents the weighted aver-
age cost of capital (WACC) adjusted for regional specific risks.

Cash flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated using a steady growth rate that does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the respective markets in which these CGU’s operate. The discounted
cash flow model uses net sales as a basis to determine the free cash flow and the value assigned. Net sales
projections are based onactual net sales achieved intheyear 2011 and latest estimations for the projected years.

POST TAX PRE-TAX GROWTH RATES

DISCOUNT RATES DISCOUNT RATES FOR NET SALES
GOODWILL 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010
Burope i 630% 634% B.a8% 8.80% . 4579:3% L 52700%
Africa 8.10% 8.63% 9.15% 9.00% 6.0-11.7% 6.3-7.0%
Buesia . 62% 6% 678%  B8S%  80220%  19-90%
CentralAmerica & Caribbean [ TI8% 821% 8.70% . 4:5-12.0%  507114%
South America 7.60% 8.31% 9.12% 12.68% 5.2-38.1% 5.9-11.1%
NorthAmenca ......................... 503% .......... 600% .......... 683% .......... 7 67% ...... 247109% ...... 2 975 []%

As basis for the calculation of these discount rates, the following risk free interest rates have been used (derived
from prime 10-year bonds rates): CHF 0.73%, EUR 1.87%, USD 1.97% (2010: CHF 1.72%, EUR 2.96%, USD 3.30%].

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions, on which the recoverable
amounts are based, would not cause the respective carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount. The key
assumptions used for the determination of the value-in-use are the same as the ones described below for con-
cession rights.

21.3.2 Impairment test of concession rights with indefinite useful lives

Forthe purpose of impairment testing, concession rights with indefinite useful lives are allocated to the respec-
tive CGU’s towhich theyrelate. The following table indicates the allocation of the concession rights with indefinite
useful lives to the group of CGU’s that are also the Company’s applicable reportable segments:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
RO e e 502
Africa 0.1 0.1
BT . e 122
Total carrying amount of concession rights 61.2 62.5

Each of the above reportable segments represents a group of CGU’s, for example, region Europe includes op-
erating concessions in the European region, which have been allocated and valued for the purpose of testing
the concession rights with indefinite lives. For impairment purposes, each company represents a cash gener-
ating unit.

From the reassessment performed in 2010 of the useful lives of the concession rights estimated as indefinite in
past periods, the management concluded that due to changes in the organization of the commercial area and
relationships with the landlords, the ones assigned to Dufry Mexico SA de CV and Dufry Free Shop SpA, ltalia
should be considered as concession rights with a definite useful life as of 2010. Consequently, management
estimated based on the lease agreements and extensions that the concession rights regarding Dufry Mexico SA
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de CVhasaremaining usefullife of 10 years and the concession rights regarding Dufry Free Shop SpA, Italia has
aremaining useful life of 17 years. The yearly amortization of concession rights increased in 2010 by CHF 3.9 mil-
lion due to this change. In both cases the impairment test showed that the carryingamount at the reporting date
was lower as the fair value.

The recoverable amounts for each of the CGU's have been determined based onvalue-in-use calculations. Such
calculations are based on business plans approved by senior management and use cash flow projections cover-
ing a five-year period as well as a discount rate, which represents the weighted average cost of capital (WACC)
adjusted for local specific risks.

Cash flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated using a steady growth rate that does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the respective markets in which these CGU’s operate. The discounted
cash flow model uses net sales as a basis to determine the free cash flow and subsequently the value assigned.
Net sales projections are based on actual net sales achieved in year 2011 and latest estimations for the years
thereafter.

The following are the key assumptions used for determining the recoverable amounts for each of the above group
of CGU's:

POST TAX PRE-TAX GROWTH RATES

DISCOUNT RATES' DISCOUNT RATES' FOR NET SALES

CONCESSION RIGHTS 201 2010 2011 2010 201 2010
Europe 6.19% 6.34% 7.40% 7.59% 1.9-5.9% 4.2-5.8%
ATIES o TV BE2% B3R 975k 50-T6% | 90-145%
Eurasia 6.09% 7.10% 6.09% 7.10% 9.3-13.8%

'Depending on the country in which the concession is operated.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The actual recoverable amount for the CGU’s subject to impairment testing exceeds its carrying amount by
CHF 434.0 million (2010: CHF 458.3 million). With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of these CGU’s,
management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the
carrying value of the concession rights to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

21.3.3 Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

The calculation of value-in-use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
- Sales growth

- Gross margin and suppliers prices

- Concession fee levels

- Discount rates

Sales growth:

Sales growth is estimated based on several factors. First Management takes into consideration statistics published
by Airforecast or ACI [Airports Council International) to estimate the development of international passenger
transit per airport or country where Dufry is active. Then Management takes into consideration specific price
inflation factors of the country, cross currency effect from origin of main passenger groups and the expected
increase in attractively to capture clients (penetration) per business segment.

Gross margins:

The expected gross margins are based on average product assortment values estimated by the management for
the budget 2012. These values are maintained over the planning period or where specific actions are planned,
these values have been increased or decreased by up to 1% over the 5 planned years compared to the historical
precedents. The gross marginis also affected by supplier’s prices. Estimates are obtained from global negotiations
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held with the main suppliers for the products and countries for which products are sourced, as well as data relating
to specific commodities during the months before the reporting date.

Concession fee levels:

These assumptions are important because, as well as using specific economic sector data for growth rates (as
noted below), management assesses how the position of the CGU, relative to its competitors, might change over
the projected period. For the CGU's subject to a value-in-use calculation, management expects the competitive
position to remain stable over the budget period.

Discount rates:

Several factors affect the discount rates.

- Forthefinancial debt partthe rateis based on theyield of the respective currency for a ten-year government
bond increased by the company’s effective bank margin and adjusted by the effective blended tax rate of the
respective CGU.

- Fortheequity part, a 5% equity risk premium was added to the rate commented above and adjusted by the Beta
of Dufry’s peer group.

The same methodologyis used by management to determine the discount rate used in discounted cash flow (DCF)
valuations, which are a key instrument to assess business potential of new or additional investment proposals.

21.3.4 Brands

The brand name Dufryis not allocated to any specific CGU for impairment testing purpose, but toa group of CGU's.
The brand name Hudson is allocated only to the CGU’s of Hudson. Management believes that the synergies from
the brands reflecting the economic reality are in accordance with these two groupings.

The recoverable amount is determined based on the Relief from the Royalty method that considers a steady
royalty stream of 0.3% post tax of the net sales projected of Dufry (without Hudson) and a steady royalty stream
of 0.9% post tax of the net sales projected of Hudson. The net sales projections cover a period of five years
(2012-2016) with a year on year growth rate between 4.7% and 21.0% (budget). This growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for Dufry Group. The discount rate of 5.0% (2010: 6.0%) represents the
weighted average cost of capital (WACC] at Group level. The recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount
by CHF 221.6 million {2010: CHF 202.1 million).

22. Cash flows used for purchase of intangible assets

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 201 2010
Payables for capital expenditure at Januaryt (28 (0.8
Additions ofintangible assets (note 21) "~~~ (39 (35.4]
Payables for capital expenditure at December3t 69 12.8
Currencytranslationadjustment ©2 10
Total Cash Flow (30.0) (22.4)

"The additions in 2011 are mainly comprised of CHF 8.7 million for usufruct Italy and software purchases for Dufry do Brasil of CHF 5.3 million, Italy
CHF 3.7 million, Hudson Group CHF 2.1 million and Dufry Management CHF 2.0 million.
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23. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Temporary differences arise from the following positions:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
DEFERRED TAXASSETS

Property plantand equipment 8.5
.lh,t,éng‘i‘t‘)ié.égéet‘s ......................................................................... iy
b otherpayab[es .............................................................. o
o Carryforward .................................................................... Vs
T 0T
Total 150.5
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Property plant and equipment (0.5)
.lh,t,énéi‘t‘)i.e.é,s,s,e‘[‘s ......................................................................... e
o cherpayab[es .............................................................. oo
G R s (Y ol
el o o (5901
Deferred tax liabilities net (22.0) (8.5)

There are notemporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, for which deferred tax liabilities
need to be recognized.

Deferred tax balances are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Deferredtaxassets . o0 137.8
Deferredtaxliabilities . [ (146.3)
Balance at the end of the period (22.0) (8.5)

Reconciliation of movements to the deferred taxes:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Changesindeferredtaxassets 87 (3.1
Changes in deferred tax liabilities (2220 7.2
Businesscombinations 331 -
Currency translation adjustment (6.1) 6.9

Deferred tax income (expense) at the end of the period 13.5 21.0
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Tax loss carry-forwards

Certain subsidiariesincurred tax losses, which according to the local tax legislation gives rise to a tax credit usable
in future tax periods. However, the use of this tax benefit can be limited in time (expiration) and by the ability of the
respective subsidiary to generate enough taxable profits in future.

Deferred tax assets relating to tax loss carry-forwards or temporary differences are recognized when it is
probable that such tax credits can be utilized in the future in accordance with the budget 2012 approved by the
Board of Directors and the projections prepared by management for these entities.

The unrecognized tax loss carry-forwards by expiry date are as follows:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Expiringwithin Tto3years 40 29
Expiring within 4 to 7 years 42.6 322
Expiringafteryears &3 79
Withnoexpirationlimit B0 272
Total 143.9 140.2

24. Other non-current assets

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Guaranteedeposits ] 129 129
Loansand contractualreceivables 183 20.3
N 8 72
Subtotal 39.7 40.4
Allowances ae (2.0
Total 37.8 38.4

Other non-current assets have maturities exceeding 12 months from initial recognition.

Movement in allowances:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Balance at the beginning of the period (2.0) (1.4)
Creation - (0.7)
Unused amounts reversed 0.1 -
Currency translation adjustment - 0.1

Balance at the end of the period (1.9) (2.0)
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295. Inventories

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Purchasedinventoriesatcost 4838 314.9
Inventoryallowances (18 (8.8)
Total 432.0 306.1

Cash Flow used for/from increase/decrease in inventories:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 20M1 2010
Balanceat the beginning of the period . 3149 8157)
Balanceattheendoftheperiod (4538) 13149
Gross change (138.9) 0.8
Businesscombinations 39 -
Currencytranslationadjustment SELU (33.5]
Cash Flow - (Increase)/decreaseininventories (69.9) (32.7)

Cost of sales includes inventories written down to net realizable value and inventory differences of CHF 17.0 million
(2010: CHF 13.6 million).

26. Trade and credit card receivables

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Tradereceivables 2T
Creditcardreceivables s 385
Gross 51.2
Allowances o8& (0.4)
Net 47.0 50.8

Trade receivables and credit card receivables are stated at their nominal value less allowances for doubtful
amounts. These allowances are established based on an individual evaluation when collection appears to be no
longer probable.

Aging analysis of trade receivables:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Notdue . 125 6.5
O T dU:
RO B0days 55 55
T ays e 0.1,
LB d0days . ey ] o
L Morethan 90 days -5 . 0.5
Total overdue 10.9 6.2

Trade receivables, gross 23.7 12.7
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Movement in allowances:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Balanceatthebeginning of the period 12:4), 0.4)
et On e 04 -
Balance at the end of the period (0.8) (0.4)
27. Other accounts receivable
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Salestaxandothertaxes o mT a6
Refund from suppliers and concessionaires 24.6
Receivables from subtenants and local business partners 0 MS 76
Prepayments . R 10.4
Accrued concessionfeesandrents L 88 7.4
Personnelreceivables 28
Guaranteedeposits N 15
Accrued inCOme M 10
Derivative financial assets' 0.4
Total 106.5
Alowances e, GBI (1.6]
Total 127.3 104.9
'See note 38 “Financial instruments”.
Movement in allowances:
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Balance at the beginning of the period [16] ........... [17]
............... o .03
................... T 02
U 4 0.1
0.1 0.1
Balance at the end of the period (3.9 (1.6)
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Cashand cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and banks as well as short-term deposits at banks with maturity

of 90 days or less.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period include CHF 6.1 million (2010: CHF 6.4 million) held
by subsidiaries operating in countries with exchange controls or other legal restrictions on money transfer.

29. Equity

29.1 Issued capital

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Sharecapital 1869 134.9
Shre PO 9345 9342
Total 1,069.4 1,069.1
29.1.1 Fully paid ordinary shares

IN MILLIONS OF CHF NUMBER OF SHARES SHARE CAPITAL SHARE PREMIUM
BalanceatJanuary1,2010 19.213954 961 3914
lssueofshares 1762249 L 388 5652
Shareissuancecosts SRR T (22.4)
Balance at December 31, 2010 26,976,203 134.9 934.2
Releaseofaccrued shareissuancecosts STTRRESUPR 28
Reclassificationtoreserves SRR T (2.3
Balance at December 31, 2011 26,976,203 134.9 934.5

The Extraordinary General Shareholders” meeting of Dufry AG of March 22,2010 approved the increase of registered
share capital by CHF 38,811,245 from CHF 96,069,770 to CHF 134,881,015 by the issuance of 7,762,249 registered
shares, each with a par value of CHF 5. The share capital of CHF 38,811,245 was settled by a contribution in kind
consisting of 4,896 registered shares of Dufry Holdings & Investments AG, Basel with a nominal value of CHF 100

each. The contribution in kind amounted to CHF 604.0 million.

For share options granted under the Company's specific restricted stock unit ("'RSU") plans see note 30.

29.2 Reserves

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011
Hedging and revaluation reserves (0.9)
Translation reserves (176.6)
Retained earnings (8.4)

(185.9)

31.12.2010

(306.7)
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29.2.1 Hedging and revaluation reserves

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Balanceatthe beginning of theyear i (177 | o
Gain/(loss) arising on changes in fair value of financial instruments:

. Interestrate swaps entered foras cash flowhedges - (2.2)
Income tax related to gains/losses on changes in fair value of interest rateswaps n . ......03
Balance at the end of the year (0.9) (1.9)

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in
fair value of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes
in fairvalue of the hedging instruments that are recognized and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve will be reclassified to the income statement only when the hedged transaction affects the income statement,
orincluded as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item, consistent with the relevant accounting policy.

There were no gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments reclassified from equity
into income statement during the year.

29.2.2 Translation reserves

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Balance at the beginning of the year (199.0) (87.2)
Exchange differences arising on translating the foreign operations 952 (126.4]
Loss on hedging instruments designated in hedges of the net assets of foreign operations | 27) 209
Income tax related to loss on hedge of the netassets of foreignoperations 99 63
Balance at the end of the year (176.6) (199.0)

Exchange differences arising on the translation of the results and net assets of the Group's foreign operations
from their functional currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. CHF) are recognized directly in other
comprehensiveincome and accumulated in the translation reserves. Exchange differences previously accumulated
in the translation reserves [in respect of translating the net assets of foreign operations) are reclassified to the
income statement on the disposal of the foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on financing instruments that are designated as hedging instruments for net
investments in foreign operations are included in the translation reserves.

29.2.3 Retained earnings

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Balanceatthe beginning oftheyear (102/5), 2924
Netearnings attributable to equity holders of the parent . W9 o6
Distribution of treasury shares (18.0)
Sharecbasepayment . 20
Taxeffectonequitytransactions . [ 44
Transactions with non-controllinginterests L = . (513.2)
Reclassification from share premium L 2B -
Balance at the end of the year (8.4) (105.8)

OnMay 11,2011, the Ordinary General Assembly has approved not to distribute dividends for 2011 (same as for 2010).
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30. Share-based payment

Restricted Stock Unit Plan (RSU)

Dufry hasimplemented specific restricted stock unit ("RSU") plans for certain members of the Group management.
These RSU Awards are from economic point of view stock options with an exercise price of nil. Each RSU represents
the right to receive one share if the vesting conditions are met.

30.1 RSU Plans of Dufry AG

OnJanuary 1, 2010, the participants of Dufry’s RSU plan were granted the right to receive on January 1, 2011, free
of charge, up to 291,102 RSU’s on aggregate, based on the price of CHF 68.76 per share [“the RSU Awards 20107).
Underthis RSU Awards 2010 281,362 RSUs vested on January 1, 2011 as the average price of the Company’s shares
on the SIXforthe ten previous trading days reached CHF 125.80 and consequently the market condition was met.
All restrictions on the RSU Award 2010 lapsed on January 1, 2011, and the RSU Awards 2010 were converted into
shares of the Company and given to the RSU plan participants free of restrictions.

The 86 participants of Dufry’'s RSU award 2011 have been granted the right to receive on January 1, 2013, free of

charge, 349,200 RSU’s on aggregate, based on the market value of the Company’'s shares on the Swiss Stock

Exchange (SIX) on December 14, 2011 (i.e. CHF 85.65 per share) ["the RSU Awards 20117). The RSU Awards 2011

contain two vesting conditions to be met:

a) the participants must be employed by the Company from January 1, 2011 until January 1, 2013 and

b) the average price of the Company’s shares on the SIX for the ten previous trading days to January 1, 2013 must
be at least 1% higher than at grant date.

The fair value of the RSU Awards 2011 has been estimated at the grant date using a binominal pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions (risk free interest rate of 0.7% and a volatility of 42%) upon which the awards
were granted. The contractual life of the awards 2011 is two years. The expected volatility reflects assumptions,
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
There are no cash settlement alternatives. In 2011, the accrued cost based on a fair value of CHF 55.11 per RSU
(2010: CHF 41.26 per RSU) is CHF 9.6 million (2010: CHF 12.0 million) and has been recorded in the income state-
ment against a reserve in equity.

30.2 Treasury Shares

Atthe beginning of 2011 Dufry hold 289,059 treasury shares with a book value of CHF 28.7 million (2010: 269,134 shares
at CHF 18.2 million). During the period the Company distributed to RSU holders 281,362 shares with a value of
CHF 27.7 million (2010: 266,810 shares with a value of CHF 18.0 million) and purchased 100,419 shares to
CHF 12.5 million (2010: 286,735 to CHF 28.5 million). At the end of the year Dufry hold 108,116 treasury shares with
a book value of CHF 13.5 million.
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31. Breakdown of transactions with non-controlling interests

31.1 Changes in participations of non-controlling interests

Recognized in equity attributable to non-controlling interests:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Founding of Shanghai Huaihai Dufry Trading Co. Ltd with 50% non-controlling interest 0.7 -
Increase in the non-controlling interests of several subsidiaries of the Hudson Group 17 56
Mergerw‘th Dufry APRNNTIEOEEESRCEEEALE RS R ™~ R [‘1 176]
Acquisition of 49% interest in the Global Retail Services Group - (1.6]
B R [04] ............ [19]
R .. IR [115 5]

31.2 Equity reserve for transactions with non-controlling interests

Recognized in equity attributable to holders of the parent:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Balance at the beginning of the year (513.2) -
Changes from transactions with non-controlling interests:

Merger with Dufry South America Ltd = (511.8)
© Acquisition of 49% interestin the Global Retail Services Group . - (1.2)
T T R e U 02l
Bl et a year ............................................................................ s 513.2)

32. Financial debt

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.201 31.12.2010
Bank debt 28.5 34.3
oM e 21 10
Financial debt, short-term 30.6 35.3
Bankdebt . 255 6788
Loans . e 43
Financial debt, long-term 1,529.8 683.1
Total 1,560.4 718.4

of which are:
Bank debt 1,554.0 713.1

During @3 2011, Dufryacquired several companiesin South and Central Americaand Armenia and financed these
transactions with an additional syndicated credit facility of CHF 763.7 million (USD 1,000.0 million).
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Bank debt:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Loans denominated in:

USDollar 14756 456.5
L SwissFranc 804 172.5
BUTO 5.7 88.6
Othercurrencies 22 1.9
Subtotal 1,574.9 729.5
Deferredbank arrangementfees (09) (16.4)
Total 1,554.0 713.1

The Group centrally negotiates and manages its key credit facilities. Minor credit lines at local level are kept for
practical reasons.

At December 31, 2011 the Group’s main credit facilities amounted to CHF 602.8 million and USD 1,435.0 million
(2010: CHF 687 million and USD 435 million).

The main credit facilities are granted by two bank syndicates with the London Branch of ING N.V. acting as agent
for both bank syndicates.

The facilities consist of three term loans and one revolving credit facility.

- The first term loan includes an amortization schedule and was reduced by CHF 87.9 million during 2011
(CHF 82.3 million in 2010) in accordance with the credit agreement. The term loan is scheduled to be fully repaid
in August 2013.

- The second term loan as well as the revolving credit facility is structured with a bullet repayment at the expiry
of the contract in August 2013.

- Finally the new term loan entered into in August 2011 includes an amortization schedule with repayments
scheduled between August 2014 and August 2016.

During 2010 and 2011, Dufry complied with the financial covenants and conditions contained in the bank credit
agreements. The agreements contain covenants and conditions customary to this type of financing.

The borrowings under these credit facilities bear interest at a floating rate (EURIBOR or LIBOR) plus spread. At
December 31,2011 the overall weighted average interest rate was 2.5% (2010: 2.0%), consisting of USD borrowings
at2.5% (2010: 2.0%), EUR borrowings at 3.2% (2010: there was no draw down in EUR) and CHF borrowings at 1.9%
(2010: 1.7%).

In addition the operationsin the Caribbean (Duty Free Caribbean Ltd, Emeralds Distributors Ltd, Young Caribbean
Jewelers Distributors Ltd and CEl Barbados Ltd) maintain credit facilities from the First Caribbean International
Bank for an amount of USD 23.3 million (2010: USD 14.8 million) which are guaranteed with their respective fixed
and floating assets.
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Hedge of net investments in foreign operations

At December 31, 2011 an amount of USD 707.3 million (December 31, 2010: USD 243.0 million) included in the
financial debt has been designated as hedge in netinvestment held in Dufry do Brasil, Alliance Inc., Interbaires
SA, Navinten SA, Blaicor SA, International Operation & Services Corp. and Duty Free Ecuador SA.

Additionally, Dufry granted the following long-term loans to subsidiaries, which have been designated as hedge
in net investment:

IN MILLIONS CURRENCY 31.12.201 31.12.2010

Subsidiary:

.. DufryAmerica HoldingInc. (USD) usb 204 215

. DufryMexicoSAdeCv usb 525 .=
Dufry Hispanosuiza SL EUR 5.1 -

The Group uses the above hedges to reduce the translation risk.

At December 31,2011, a loss in the amount of CHF 82.7 million (2010: gain of CHF 20.9 million) was recognized in
other comprehensive income to compensate corresponding movements in the translation reserve.

33. Provisions

CONTINGENT LAW SUITS DISPUTE ON LABOR
IN MILLIONS OF CHF LIABILITIES AND DUTIES CONTRACTS DISPUTES OTHER TOTAL
Balance at January 1, 2011 - 1.8 0.4 3.2 0.1 5.5
Business combinations 30.0 - - 0.1 1.4 31.5
Chargefortheyear - .82 - .01 28 6l
Utilized T T 4 s oen (0.8)
Unusedamountsreversed T T S e n (2.8)
Currencytranslationadjustment 67 e SRR T 05 7,
Balance at December 31, 2011 36.7 4.9 - 3.0 2.0 46.6
Thereof:
e T A9 ST 0.2 .. 20 s
LJnencunTent e 367 T T 28 - i
Balance at January 1, 2010 - 1.8 - 3.5 0.3 5.6
Chargefortheyear . . T 0.3 ... 0.4 .. 0.2 ... 0.1 &
Utitized SRR SRR T 2 ©2 0.4)
Unusedamountsreversed . T T SRR T - . -
Currencytranslationadjustment S 3 S 3 ol (0.7
Balance at December 31,2010 - 1.8 0.4 3.2 0.1 5.5
Thereof:

current - 1.8 0.4 0.1 0.1 2.4
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Management believes thatits total provisions are adequate based upon currently available information. However,
given the inherent difficulties in estimating liabilities in the below described areas, it cannot be guaranteed that
additional or lesser costs will be incurred above or below the amounts provisioned.

Contingent liabilities

Different contingent liabilities with a fair value of CHF 30 million at the date of acquisition were determined
during the due diligence process made for the acquisition of the companies in South and Central America and
Asia. IFRS 3 Business combinations requires to reflect these liabilities with uncertain amountin the statement
of financial position although the risk exposure for some of these positions has been regarded as medium or
low. Theidentified risks include a variety of potential liabilities from past periods, mainly related to the import
and sale of merchandise by entities under common control or regarding contributions owed based on the
contractual situation of employees. As the identified risks implied in these contingent liabilities is subject to
interpretations and uncertainties in the respective regulations the management made an estimation of the
fair value.

Labor disputes
The provision of CHF 3.0 million (2010: CHF 3.2 million) relates mainly to claims presented by sales staff due to
the termination of temporary labor contracts in Brazil.

Law suits and duties

The CHF 4.9 million (2010: CHF 1.8 million) provision covers uncertainties related to the outcome of several law
suits in relation to taxes, duties or other claims in several countries. In 2011 the increase relates to cases in
Brazil, Tunisia and Cote d’lvoire. These claims are subject to arbitration where the final outcome can take
severalyears. No cases were settled in 2011.

The expected timing of the related cash outflows of non-current provisions as of December 31,2011 is currently
projected as follows:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF EXPECTED CASH OUTFLOWS
TSSOSO U U U U UUS PR TR 10
2015 0.1
2016+ 24.3

Total non-current 39.5
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34. Post-employment benefit obligations

The employees of Dufry Group are insured against the risk of old age and disablement in accordance with the
local laws and regulations. A description of the significant retirement benefit plans is as follows:

34.1 Switzerland

Dufry has a defined benefit pension plan, which is based on the actual salary of the employee, covers substantially
all of Dufry’'s employees in Switzerland. The plan requires contributions to be made to a separate legal entity, the
administrative fund. The pension fund is a separate entity from the Dufry Group and does not hold assets related
to the Group.

The following table summarizes the components of pension expenses recognized in the income statement:
Net pension costs:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 20m 2010

Current service costs (1.8) (1.5)

Interestoosts e [ 07— 07
Netactuarial loss recognized inyearunder §921f. N -
Expectedreturnonplanassets LU 0.9,
Pension expenses (1.8) (1.3)

The total of the pension expenses of the Group is included in personnel expenses [retirement benefits). The actual
return of plan assets in 2011 was a gain of CHF 0.29 million (2010: CHF 0.71 million).

In 2012, Dufry expects to contribute CHF 2.0 million to this defined benefit pension plan.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The principal assumptions for the actuarial computation are as follows:

IN% 2011 2010
Discountrates e [ ] 2.50%
Expected returnon plan assets 3.00% 3.25%
Futuresalaryincreases 1507 . 1.50%
FUlUre pension INCreases R 1.00%,
Average retirement age (in years) b4 b4

The following table summarizes the components of the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position for the plan:



Funded status:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF

Fairvalue of plan assets at beginning of period

Expected fair value of plan assets at end of period
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Actuarial gains/(losses)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Defined benefit obligation (PBO) at beginning of period

Defined benefit obligation (PBO) at end of period

Funded status

Net assetin balance sheet

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position

The movement in the pension liability is recognized in other non-current assets of the consolidated statement of

financial position as follows:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010
Net asset at beginning of period 0.7 0.3
PeNSIOn BXPENSES e e, [15) S 13
Contributions paid by 6MPOYeT e . 17
Net asset at end of period 0.9 0.7
Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Defined benefit obligation (PBO) FEES el 82 22 22 183
Planassets ... | S| SVt 225 W 192
(Deficit) surplus (7.4) (3.5) (1.7) (3.1) 0.9
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities () el 1 e 02
Effect of changesinactuarial assumptions

on plan liabilities 2.1 (3.5) - 1.9 0.8
Experience adjustments on plan assets (0.7) (0.2) 1.4 (2.7) (0.5)
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The major categories of plan assets as percentages of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

IN % 201 2010 2009 2008 2007
Shares 24% 25% 24% 19% 27%
g . IS el A I i
A propemes .......................................... - beol R S s
SGECUREREEEE AR . IR J T ol S
S R o IR oo oo oo T00%

34.2 Italy and other countries

Post-employment benefit obligations:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Italy 4.6 5.2
Other countries 1.4 1.2
Total 6.0 6.4

Inltaly, an unfunded defined benefit plan exists. The pension contributions owed by the employer are based on the
number of years the respective employee worked with the respective Italian subsidiary. The principal assumptions
for actuarial computation are as follows:

IN % 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Discount rate 4.5% 4.5%

35. Other liabilities

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Concession fee payables

Thereof :
non-current liabilities 1.3 9.6
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Other current liabilities comprise of current or renewable liabilities due within one year.

36. Related parties and related party transactions

A party is related to the Group if the party directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with Dufry, has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group, has joint control
over the Group or is an associate or a joint venture of the Group. In addition, members of the key management
personnelof Dufry or close members of the family are also considered related parties as well as post-employment
benefit plans for the benefit of employees of the Group. Transactions with related parties are conducted on an
at-arm’s-length basis.

The related party transactions and relationships for the Dufry Group are the following:

Dufry Group purchased during 2011, goods from the following related parties: Hudson Wholesale for CHF 23.2 mil-
lion (2010: CHF 37.4 million), from Hudson RPM CHF 4.6 million (2010: CHF 5.4 million) and finished his relationship
with MDI(2010: CHF 2.2 million). The purchase prices used in these transactions were atarm’s length. At Decem-
ber 31,2011, the Dufry Group had open invoices with the following related parties: Hudson Wholesale CHF 2.4 million
(2010: CHF 2.2 million) and with Hudson RPM CHF 0.5 million {2010: CHF 0.5 million).

Latin American Airport Holding Ltd is the holding company of Inmobiliaria Fumisa SA de CV ("Fumisa”) and
Aeropuertos Dominicanos Siglo XXI, SA(“Aerodom”). Three members of the Group's Board of Directors are also
members of the Board of Directors of Latin American Airport Holding Ltd. Advent International Corporation
manage funds that control among others, the Group, Fumisa and Aerodom.

In 2011, the Company operates shops at the internationalairportin Mexico City under concession agreement with
Fumisa. During 2011 Fumisa charged CHF 16.2 million (2010: CHF 22.5 million) to the Company in concept of rent,
and Dufry has advanced to Fumisa CHF 4.2 million (2010: CHF 4.2 million] as prepaid rent.

Inversiones Tunc SA operates shops at several airports in the Dominican Republic under concession agreements
with Aerodom. According to these agreements, Inversiones Tunc SA compensated through monthly rental fees
theright to use the commercial areas leased to them by Aerodom. In 2011, the total sales based rent for Inversiones
Tunc SA amounted to CHF 5.1 million (2010: CHF 4.5 million].

OnJanuary 15,2010 Transportes Aereos de Xalapa SAde CV, a subsidiary of Aerodom agreed to provide during
twoyears air transport services to Dufry for at least USD 2.1 million peryear. During 2011 Dufry received services
for CHF 2.6 million (2010: CHF 1.9 million).

OnJune 14,2011 Dufry International AG purchased back the usufruct right granted to Gestione Spazi Attrezzati
Srl (GSA] which permitted the benefits of share ownership, including the receipt of dividends on 10% of the
shares of Dufry Shop Finance Srl, which otherwise would have expired in May 4, 2041 for EUR 4.5 million. After
this transaction GSA keeps the usufruct right acquired in 2002, on 6% of the shares of Dufrital SpA, which are
held by Dufry Shop Finance Srl. Upon expiration of these rights in May-41 GSA shall be entitled to receive 6% of
the undistributed retained earnings of Dufrital SpA. GSA is a company controlled by Mr. Dante Marro, Chief
Operating Officer of region Europe and member of the Group Executive Committee of the Company. In 2011, no
charge (2010: CHF 0.5 million]) was recognized as usufruct in the income statement.

Mr. José Gonzalez, Chief Operating Officer of region Central America & Caribbean and member of the Group
Executive Committee, owns 26.3% of the share capital of the subsidiary Puerto Libre International SA
("PLISA"). PLISA operates duty free shops at the international airport of Managua as well as three border
shops in Nicaragua.
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In 2011 the remuneration for the Board members was CHF 1.4 million (2010: CHF 0.9 million). In addition Mr.
Xavier Bouton ([member] received CHF 0.3 million (2010: CHF 0.3 million] for strategic consulting services provided
to the Group.

In 2011 the total compensation to members of the Group Executive Committee recognized in personnel expenses
andincluding all short-term employee benefits was CHF 15.7 million (2010: CHF 14.6 million). This amountincludes:
a) 181,541 stock options (RSU's) of the biannual award 2011 (2010: 142,750 RSU's of the annual award 2010) of Dufry AG,
b) a cash compensation of CHF 8.8 million (2010: CHF 7.3 million), c) employer’s contribution to the pension and
other post-employment benefits of CHF 2.0 million (2010: CHF 1.5 million]. The expenses accrued in relation to
the restricted stock unit plan 2011 (biannual] was CHF 5.0 million (2010: CHF 5.9 million] and is included in the
short-term employee benefits mentioned above.

The legally required disclosure of the participations and compensations of the members of the Board of Directors
and key management of Dufry are explained in the respective notes to the stand alone financial statements of
Dufry AG.

37. Commitments and Contigencies

Guarantee commitments

The Group entersinto long-term agreements with airport authorities, seaportauthorities and other landlords.
The concessionaires use to require a minimum annual guarantee, which can be based on sales, number of
passengers or other indicators of operational activity to guarantee the performance of Dufry’s obligations. In
case of anearly termination, the operation can be required to compensate the concessionaire for lost earnings.
The Group ortheir subsidiaries have granted these guaranties regarding the performance of the above mentioned
long-term contracts directly or through third parties. As per December 31,2011 and December 31,2010, no request
for fulfillment of such contingent liabilities was pending.

Some of these long-term concession agreements Dufry has entered into include clauses to prevent the early
termination, such as obligations to fulfill guaranteed minimal payments during the full term of the agreement.
The conditions for an onerous contract will be met, when such operation presents a non-profitable outlook. In this
eventa provision based on the presentvalue of the future net cash flows needs to be created. At the reporting date
of 2011 and 2010 no such onerous concession exists.

Contingent liabilities

The group has recognized a provision for a contingent liability of CHF 36.7 million as of December 31, 2011 in the
course of the acquisition of the companies in South and Central America and Asia. Refer to note 6 business com-
binations for additional information.
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38. Financial instruments

38.1 Capital risk management

Capital comprises equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent less hedging and revaluation reserves for
unrealized gain on net investment plus other equity-linked or equity-like instruments attributable to the parent.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an adequate credit rating
and sustainable capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of its strategy and the long-term
opportunities and costs of each capital source. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group evaluates to
adjust dividend payments to shareholders; return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, issue equity-linked
instruments or equity-like instruments.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during 2011 or 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a combination of ratios; including a gearing ratio, cash flow considerations and
profitability ratios. As for the gearing the Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations. Capital includes ordinary shares, equity
attributable to the equity holders of the parent less hedge reserve for unrealized gain on netinvestment and other
equity-linked or equity-like instruments.

38.1.1 Gearing ratio
The following ratio compares owner’s equity to borrowed funds:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Cashandcashequivalents agen (80.6)
Financialdebt, short-term 6 353
Financialdebt, long-term 15298 683.1
Net debt 1,361.3 637.8
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent g70.0 733.7
Translation reserve, hedging andrevaluationreserves' (265 (98.2)
Total capital 843.5 635.5
Gearing ratio 61.7% 50.1%

" This position is included in the translation reserves [CHF 27.4 million) as well as in the hedging and revaluation reserves (-CHF 0.9 million) in the statement of changes in equity

The Group did not hold collateral of any sort at the reporting date.

Significant accounting policies:

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the bases
of measurement, and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2.
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38.2 Categories of financial instruments

At December 31, 2011

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Held-to- NON-
Loans and maturity FINANCIAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF receivables at FVTPL' investments Subtotal ASSETS? TOTAL
Cashandcashequivalents 1991 T AR ol
Tradeandcreditcardreceivables 470 o SR ) AT
Otheraccountsreceivable . 520 0.4 . T 824 LTAS . 122.8
Othernon-currentassets . 383 T T 333 40 0
Total 331.4 0.4 - 331.8
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
at NON-
amortized FINANCIAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF cost at FvTOCI? at FVTPL! Subtotal LIABILITIES? TOTAL
Tradepayables . SOLT T T SOLT - . S011
Financialdebt, short-term 306 T T 806 - . Ao
Otherliabilities 257 (VR 08 2275 .28 . 2356
Financialdebt, long-term 19299 . T T ez I ez
Other non-current liabilities . . N3 T T "3 T . 13
Total 2,098.6 1.0 0.8 2,100.4
At December 31, 2010
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Held-to- NON-
Loans and maturity FINANCIAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF receivables at FVTPL' investments Subtotal ASSETS? TOTAL
Cashandcashequivalents 806 T T 806 -~ . 0o
Tradeandcreditcardreceivables = 0.8 .. T T 208 T . 50.8
Otheraccountsreceivable . 4000 0.4 . T 404 64.5 . [l
Othernon-currentassets . 362 . T T 862 22 N st
Total 207.6 0.4 - 208.0
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
at NON-
amortized FINANCIAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF cost at FVTOCI? at FVTPL! Subtotal LIABILITIES? TOTAL
Tradepayables . 2039 T T8
Financial debt, short-term 35.3
N SR Y I T 1)
Financialdebt, long-term ... 831 T m e8]
Other non-current liabilities . Th T e T e
Total 1,130.3

" Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through income statement;

?Financial liabilities at fair value through other comprehensive income

3Non-financial assets and liabilities comprise prepaid expenses and deferred income, which will not generate a cash outflow or inflow as well as sales tax and
other tax positions
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38.2.1 Netincome by IAS 39 valuation category

Financial Assets at December 31, 2011

HELD-TO-
LOANS AND MATURITY
IN MILLIONS OF CHF RECEIVABLES AT FVTPL INVESTMENTS TOTAL
Interestincome lexpenses) i S L T
Other finance income (expenses] .l T T -
From interest 4.1 - - 41
Fairvaluesgainlloss) . T 0.4 - . 0.4
Foreign exchange gain (loss] 163.9 - - 163.9
Impairments/allowances® B T o S
Total - from subsequent valuation 160.2 0.4 - 160.6
Netincome 164.3 0.4 - 164.7
Financial Liabilities at December 31, 2011
AT
AMORTIZED
IN MILLIONS OF CHF COSTS AT FVTOCI ATFVTPL TOTAL
Interestincome (expenses ... ... e SRR = . 49.3)
Other finance income lexpenses] . .. G T = . (5.9)
Frominterest (55.2) - - (55.2)
Fairvaluesgainlloss] L .. T S o8 0.8
Foreignexchangegainlloss) ' (161 8.1 ........... T - . (161 .8.1.
Impairments/allowances ? - -
Total - from subsequent valuation (161.8) - (0.8) (162.6)
Netincome (217.0) - (0.8) (217.8)
Net financial assets and liabilities at December 31, 2011
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF ASSETS LIABILITIES NET
Interestincome (expenses) 41 [49.3) (45.2)
Other finance income lexpenses) e S B9 (5.9]
Frominterest 41 (55.2) (51.1)
Fairvaluesgainlloss) .. B 04 . 08 . (0.4)
Foreignexchangegainllossl' . 1639 . etsl 2.1
Impairments /allowances? o B2 -~ . 3.7
Total - from subsequent valuation 160.6 (162.6) (2.0)
Netincome 164.7 (217.8) (53.1)

' This positionincludes the foreign exchange gain (loss) recognized on third party and intercompany financial assets liabilities through income statement
?This position includes the income from the release of impairments and allowances and recoveries during the period less the increase of impairments
and allowances and write-offs
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Financial Assets at December 31, 2010

HELD-TO-
LOANS AND MATURITY
IN MILLIONS OF CHF RECEIVABLES AT FVTPL INVESTMENTS TOTAL
Interestincome lexpenses) i A3 T . [
Other finance income (expenses] ... 05 T > 02
From interest 4.8 - - 4.8
Fairvaluesgainlloss) - 04 - . 0.4
Foreignexchangegain(loss)' (675) - - . (67.5)
Impairments/allowances? (g S - Ly
Total - from subsequent valuation (69.4) 0.4 - (69.0)
Netincome (64.6) 0.4 - (64.2)
Financial Liabilities at December 31, 2010
AT
AMORTIZED
IN MILLIONS OF CHF COSTS AT FVTOCI AT FVTPL TOTAL
Interestincome [expenses) B6.4) S - (36.4]
Other finance income [expenses) s S - (0.5]
From interest (36.9) - - (36.9)
Fairvaluesgainlloss) - -
Foreign exchangegainlloss)’ 675 -
Impairments/allowances? S -
Total - from subsequent valuation 67.5 -
Netincome 30.6 -
Net financial assets and liabilities at December 31, 2010
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
IN MILLIONS OF CHF ASSETS LIABILITIES NET
Interestincome [expenses) U A (36.4) (32.1)
Other finance income [expenses) ] 05 s -
From interest 4.8 (36.9) (32.1)
Fairvaluesgainlloss) o 0.4 o 03
Foreignexchangegainfloss)' (67.5) 75 -
Impairments / allowances? (1.9) - (1.9)
Total - from subsequent valuation (69.0) 67.4 (1.6)
Netincome (64.2) 30.5 (33.7)

' This positionincludes the foreign exchange gain (loss] recognized on third party and intercompany financial assets liabilities through income statement
?This position includes the income from the release of impairments and allowances and recoveries during the period less the increase of impairments
and allowances and write-offs
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38.3 Financial risk management objectives

As aglobal player, Dufry has worldwide activities which need to be financed in different currencies and are conse-
quently affected by fluctuations of foreign exchange and interest rates. The Group treasury manages the financing
of the operations through centralized credit facilities as to ensure an adequate allocation of these resources and
simultaneously minimize the potential financial risk impacts.

Dufry continuously monitors the market risk, such as foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and capitalrisk. The Group seeks to minimize the currency exposure and interest rates risk using appropriate
transaction structures or alternatively, using derivative financial instruments to hedge the exposure to these risks.
The treasury policy forbids to enter or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes.

38.4 Market risk

Dufry's financial assets and liabilities are mainly exposed to market risk in foreign currency exchange and interest
rates. The Group’s objective is to minimize the income statement impact and to reduce fluctuations in cash flows
through structuring the respective transactions to minimize market risks. In cases, where the associated risk
cannot be hedged appropriately through a transaction structure and the evaluation of market risks indicates a
material exposure, the Group may use financial instruments to hedge the respective exposure.

The Group may enter into a variety of financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk,
including forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and over the counter plain vanilla options.

During the current financial year the Group utilized interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts
for hedging purposes.

38.5 Interest rate risk management

The following table shows the contracts or underlying principal amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments. Contracts orunderlying principalamountsindicate the volume of business outstanding at the balance
sheet date. The fair values are determined by reference to market prices or standard pricing models that used
observable market inputs at December 31, 2011.

At December 31, 2011

CONTRACT OR UNDERLYING POSITIVE NEGATIVE
IN MILLIONS OF CHF PRINCIPAL AMOUNT FAIRVALUES FAIR VALUES
Foreign exchange forward contracts and options 67.5 0.5 0.8
Interest rate related instruments' 280.6 - 1.0
Total 0.5 1.8
At December 31, 2010

CONTRACT OR UNDERLYING POSITIVE NEGATIVE
IN MILLIONS OF CHF PRINCIPAL AMOUNT FAIR VALUES FAIR VALUES
Foreign exchange forward contracts and options 12.2 0.4 0.1
Interest rate related instruments' 280.6 - 2.2
Total 0.4 2.3

'These instruments are designated as cash flow hedges. The changesin fair value are recognized through other comprehensive income.
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38.6 Foreign currency risk management

Dufry manages the cash flow surplus or deficits in foreign currency of the operations through FX-transactionsin
the respective local currency. Major imbalances in foreign currencies at Group level are hedged through foreign
exchange forwards contracts. The terms of the foreign currency forward contracts have been negotiated to match
the terms of the forecasted transactions.

38.6.1 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Amongvarious methodologies to analyze and manage risk, Dufry utilizes a system based on sensitivity analyses.
This tool enables Group Treasury to identify the level of risk of each entity. Sensitivity analysis provides an ap-
proximate quantification of the exposure in the event that certain specified parameters were to be met under a
specific set of assumptions.

Foreign currency exposure at December 31, 2011:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF usb EURO BRL OTHER TOTAL
Monetaryassets ] 7835 2T 7 431 . Ierdt
Monetaryliabilities 19913 W37 983 ... 65.2 . U By
Net exposure before hedging (607.8) (22.0) (37.8) (22.1) (689.7)
Hedging g3ka BN SR - . S99
Net exposure after hedging 26.6 (27.1) (37.8) (22.1) (60.4)

Foreign currency exposure at December 31, 2010:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF usD EURO BRL OTHER TOTAL
Monetaryassets . . aouz Mo 382 .37 . s
Monetaryliabilities 6839 . 1428 438 178 . s.2
Net exposure before hedging (189.7) (27.8) (5.6) 22.1 (201.0)
Hedging 2220 T T - . 2221
Net exposure after hedging 32.4 (27.8) (5.6) 22.1 211

The sensitivity analysis includes all monetary assets and liabilities irrespective of whether the positions are third
party or intercompany. Dufry has considered some intercompany long-term loans, which are not likely to be settled
in the foreseeable future as being part of the netinvestmentin such subsidiary. Consequently, the related exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented within translation reserve in equity.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of
the Group entities. The values and risk disclosed here are the hedged and not hedged positions assuming a 5%
appreciation of the CHF against all other currencies.

Apositive result indicates a profitin the income statement orin the hedging and revaluation reserves when the
CHF strengthens against the relevant currency.

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Netearnings - profit (loss] of USD = (65.2)
Other comprehensive income - profit (loss) of USD 29.8 14.7
Net earnings - profit (loss) of Euro 1.4 1.4
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Reconciliation to categories of financial instruments:

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Totalfinancialassets held in foreign currencies (seeabove) 11640 687.3
lessintercompany financial assets in foreign currencies 109700 (62¢6.6)
Third party financial assets heldin foreign currencies 60 60.7
Third party financial assets held inreporting currencies 2648 147.3
Total third party Financial Assets' 331.8 208.0

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Total financial liabilities held in foreign currencies (see above) 1,853.7 888.3
less intercompany financial liabilities in foreign currencies | 113.00 (115.2)
Third party financial liabilities held in foreign currencies 17607 773.1
Third party financial liabilities held in reporting currencies 3597 3595
Totalthird party Financial Liabilities’ 21004 1132.6

see note 38.2 "categories of financial instruments”

38.6.2 Forward foreign exchange contracts at fair value
Asthe management of the company actively pursues to naturally hedge the positions of each operation, the policy
of the Group is to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts only where needed.

As at December, 2011 the Group had open contracts with a notionalvalue of CHF 67.5 million (2010: CHF 12.2 million).
The loss of CHF 0.3 million (2010: CHF 0.3 million) resulting from the subsequent valuation at fair values is included
as foreign exchange gain/(loss) in the income statement to compensate corresponding foreign exchange positions
in the opposite direction.

38.7 Interest rate risk management

The Group manages the interest rate risk through interest rate swaps and options to the extent that the hedging
cannot be implemented through managing the duration of the debt drawings. The levels of the hedging activities
are evaluated regularly and may be adjusted in order to reflect the development of the various parameters.

38.7.1 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the reporting date. The risk analysis provided here assumes a simultaneous increase
of 100 basis points of the interest rate of all interest bearing financial positions.

Ifinterest rates had been 100 basis points higher whereas all other variables were held constant, the Group’s net
earnings for the year 2011 would decrease by CHF 7.4 million (2010: decrease by CHF 6.5 million).

38.7.2 Interest rate swap contracts

Underinterest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate
interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate
the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt and the cash flow exposures on the
issued variable rate debt. The fair value of interest rate swaps at the end of the reporting period is determined by
discounting the future cash flows using the interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period and the credit
riskinherentinthe contract, and isdisclosed below. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances
atthe end of the reporting period.
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During the second quarter of 2010 the Group entered into a payer swap agreement with a notional value of USD
300 million which was designated as a cash flow hedge. The net loss of CHF 1.0 million per December 31, 2011
(2010: CHF 2.2 million] resulting from the subsequent valuation at fair value was recorded in other comprehensive
income and does not affect the income statement.

The following tables detail the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

At December 31, 2011

AVERAGE CONTRACTED FIXED NOTIONAL FAIR VALUE ASSETS
IN MILLIONS OF CHF INTEREST RATE PRINCIPAL VALUE (LIABILITIES)
Lessthan 1year 0.9982% 280.6 1.0
1to 2years - - -
Total 280.6 1.0
At December 31, 2010

AVERAGE CONTRACTED FIXED NOTIONAL FAIR VALUE ASSETS
IN MILLIONS OF CHF INTEREST RATE PRINCIPAL VALUE (LIABILITIES)
Lessthan 1year - - -
1to2years 0.9982% 280.6 2.2
Total 280.6 2.2

The interest rate swaps settle on a monthly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps is the one month
USD LIBOR rate. The Group will settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are
designated as cash flow hedges in ordertoreduce the Group's cash flow exposure resulting from variable interest
rateson borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur simultaneously and the
amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to the income statement over the period that the floating rate interest
payments on debt affect the income statement.

38.7.3 Allocation of financial assets and liabilities to interest classes

At December 31, 2011

IN % IN MILLIONS OF CHF
Average Average
variable fixed Variable Fixed Totalinterest Non-interest
interest rate  interest rate interest rate  interest Rate bearing bearing TOTAL
Cashand cashequivalents = . [ERCR 26% 1896 2.7 G 573 ]
Tradeandcreditcardreceivables T ~. [ o . 470
Otheraccountsreceivable o 0.1 N N ... 52.4 IS
Othernon-currentassets 0.1% IT7% 34 1.7 - z1, - 28.2
Financial assets 142.9 4.0 146.9 184.9
Trade payables - - - 3011 301.1
4.5% 2.0%
2% 2%
Financial liabilities 1,553.6 6.9 1,560.5 539.9 2,100.4

Net financial liability 1,410.7 2.9 1,413.6 355.0 1,768.6
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At December 31, 2010

IN % IN MILLIONS OF CHF
Average Average

variable fixed Variable Fixed Totalinterest Non-interest
interest rate  interest rate interest rate  interest Rate bearing bearing TOTAL
Cashandcashequivalents 07% 24% 490 3.2 . 2 - 28.4 . At
Tradeandcreditcardreceivables L T ~. [ ~. - 50.5 HEE. 90:8
Otheraccountsreceivable . 58% . T 0.5 N L5 - 396 . e
Othernon-currentassets . 02% T2% 22 6.4 N 275 .. 2el
Financial assets 51.2 10.4 61.6 146.4 208.0
Tradepayables S - o ... 2057 B
Financialdebt, short-term . .. 1% 50% 380 23 .. 90-2 I - . 00
Otherliabilities 68% T 3.3 5 197.6 G
Financialdebt, long-term —  30% A% 6787 AL RN - [l
Othernon-currentliabilities T3% T 6! - 221 I 3.3 - el
Financial liabilities 711.7 16.1 727.8 404.8 1,132.6
Net financial liabilities 660.5 5.7 666.2 258.4 924.6

38.8 Credit risk management

Creditrisk refers tothe risk that counterparty may default onits contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group.

Almost all Groups' sales are retail sales made against cash or internationally recognized credit/debit cards.
Dufryhas policiesin place toensure that other sales are only made to customers with an appropriate credit history
or that the credit risk is insured adequately. The remaining credit risk is in relation to subtenants of concessions
or holders of minority interests.

The creditrisk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments relates to financial institutions with high credit-
ratings. The Group does not expect defaults from non-performance of these counterparties.

38.8.1 Maximum credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, after deduction of any allowances
for losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
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38.9 Liquidity risk management

The group evaluates thisrisk as the ability to settle its financial liabilities on time and at a reasonable price. Beside
its capability to generate cash through its operations, Dufry mitigates liquidity risk by keeping credit facilities with
highly rated financial institutions. (See note 32).

38.9.1 Remaining Maturities for non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The following tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and liabilities
(based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay). The tables include principal and interest
cash flows.

At December 31, 2011

MORE THAN
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 1-6 MONTHS 6-12 MONTHS 1-2YEARS 2YEARS TOTAL
Cashandcashequivalents 990 05 S -
Tradeand creditcardreceivables . 4D T T .
Otheraccountsreceivable L Ny ] 0.5 T 0.1
Othernon-currentassets . ... o o 0 334
Total cash inflows 298.8 1.0 0.1 33.5
Tradepayables . 3011, T T -
Financialdebt, short-term . . 396 L0 T .
Other liabilities 223.2 - -
Financialdebt,long-term ek L Buks 092
Othernon-current liabilities T S s
Total cash outflows 628.3 844.5 720.5
At December 31,2010

MORE THAN
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 1-6 MONTHS 6-12 MONTHS 1-2YEARS 2YEARS
Cashandcashequivalents . . 806 T T -
Tradeandcreditcardreceivables 50.8 T T -
Otheraccountsrecelvable 81 08 o -
Other non-current assets - 0.4 38.3
el b o ee Tis T R Sas
Trade payables 203.9 - - -
Financialdebt, short-term 383 oo -
Otherliabilities 923 40 e 0.9
Financialdebt, long-term abdo asd o re 4330
Other non-current liabilities - - - 9.4

Total cash outflows 475.9 48.4 179.7 443.3




38.9.2 Remaining maturities for derivative financial instruments
The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis forits derivative financial instruments. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows on derivative instruments that
settle on a net basis and those derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable
is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated

by the yield curves at the end of the reporting period.

At December 31, 2011
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LESS THAN 6 MONTHS
IN MILLIONS OF CHF 3MONTHS 3-6 MONTH TO1YEAR 1YEAR +
Net settled:

interest rate swaps (0.5) (0.6) - -

foreign exchange forward contracts 0.3 - - -
Gross settled:

foreign exchange forward contracts 0.3 0.1 0.1 -
Total 0.1 (0.5) 0.1 -
At December 31, 2010

LESS THAN 6 MONTHS

IN MILLIONS OF CHF 3MONTHS 3-6 MONTH TO1YEAR 1YEAR +
Net settled:

interest rate swaps (0.5) - (1.3) (0.3)

foreign exchange forward contracts - - - -
Gross settled:

foreign exchange forward contracts 0.3 0.1 - -
Total (0.2) 0.1 (1.3) (0.3)

38.10 Fair value of financial instruments

38.10.1 Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortized cost
Except as detailed in the following table, the Group considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

IN MILLIONS OF CHF

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Loans and receivables:
credit card receivables

Carrying amount

31.12.2011

Fair value

Carrying amount

31.12.2010

Fair value

151
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38.10.2 Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value
The fairvalues of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices (includes listed redeemable notes,
bills of exchange, debentures and perpetual notes).

The fairvalues of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available,
adiscounted cash flow analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives. Foreign currency forward
contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest
rates matching maturities of the contracts. Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future
cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.
The fairvalues of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding those described above) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

38.10.3 Fair value measurements recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recogni-
tion at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1. fairvalue measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) orindirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: fairvalue measurements are those derived from valuation techniquesthatinclude inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date:

At December 31, 2011

IN THOUSANDS OF CHF LEVEL1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL3 TOTAL

ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE'

Foreign exchange related derivative financial instruments - 0.5 - 0.5

LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE?

Foreign exchange related derivative financial instruments - 0.8 - 0.8
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At December 31, 2010

IN THOUSANDS OF CHF LEVEL1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL3 TOTAL

ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIRVALUE'

Foreign exchange related derivative financial instruments - 0.4 - 0.4

LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE?

Foreign exchange related derivative financial instruments - 0.1 - 0.1
Interest rate related derivative financial instruments - 2.2 - 2.2
Total - 2.3 - 2.3

"Included in the position “other accounts receivable” in the statement of financial position
ZIncluded in the position “other liabilities” in the statement of financial position

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

39. Events after reporting date

OnJanuary 10, 2012 Dufry expanded its presence at Sheremetyevo Airport in Moscow, Russia by taking control
(51% of the issued shares) of Regstaer Sheremetjevo Duty Free, a local travel retail operator for a total consid-
eration of CHF 46.9 million. In 2011 this operation generated a turnover of about USD 60 million. The Group isin
the process of preparing a purchase price allocation as to determine the fair values involved in this transaction.
The estimated transaction costs are CHF 0.9 million.

The acquired business complements the existing operations at site and adds 1,200 square meters in nine duty
free shops across several terminals of the airport. Synergies are expected to be achieved among others when
Dufry integrates the 200 Regstaer employees into its local organization, introduces the standard corporate
procedures and incorporates these shops to its global supply chain. In 2011 Sheremetyevo International Airport
was the second busiest airport in Russia with 14 million international passengers. It is also one of the fastest
growing airports in Europe and recorded a passenger growth of close to 20% in the last twelve months.
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40. MOST IMPORTANT AFFILIATED COMPANIES

H=Holding R = Retail D = Distribution Center
OWNERSHIP  SHARE CAPITAL
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 LOCATION COUNTRY TYPE  IN% IN THOUSANDS CURRENCY
EUROPE L
DufrynternationallLtd ... | Basel Switzerland | R 000 1000 CHE .
Dufry Holdings & Investments Ltd Basel Switzerland H 100 CHF
DuryBaselMulhouse Lid  Basel  Switerlnd R 100 CHF
DufrySamnaunltd samnaun Switzerland | R 100 100 CHF .
DufritalSpA ] Mitan laly Roe0 28 EUR
CidltalaSpA Mitan @y RGO 28 EUR
DufryltaliaSph | Mitan Ry R0 s EUR
Network ltalia Bdicole Milan aly R0 2 ] EUR
Dufry Islas Canarias SL Tenerife Spain R 100 EUR
DufryFranceSA  Nice . France R 100 EUR
DufryHeltasbed . Athens | Greece | R W] EUR
AFRICA L
DufryTunisie SA .. Tumis 0 Tunisia RO 100 2300 ] EUR .
DufryMarocSarl Casablanca | Morocco | R 80 .. 2500 MAD
DufryEayptLLC Sharm-el-Sheikh | Egypt | Ro80 450 usb
Dufry&GID.C.Ld A Ghana ... | RO 88 M8 Usb .
Dufry Aeroport d'Alger Sarl Alger Algeria R 80 20,000 DzD
e T N 1 1 ¥ T
EURASIA L
DufryEastO00 Moscow | Russia | R0 nzoo usb
Dufry Moscow Sheremetyevo | Moscow ] Russia .. | R 420 ] Usb..
DufrySingapore Pte. Ltd. = Singapere .. singapore | R.. . 190 .. 13,300 . . 56D .
DufryCambodialtd | PhnomPen Cambodia | Ro8 123 usb
Dufry (Shanghai
CommercialCo. Ltd. Shanghai China RO M0 T CNY
ADF Shops CJSC Yerevan Armenia R 100 AMD
DufrySharJah L . har]ah ............... D S I i
............................................................... Emirates . ...
Dufrydoo. ] Belgrade serbia R..100 693078 RSD
CENTRAL AMERICA & CARIBBEAN L
Dufry Mexico SAde CV Mexico City Mexico R 100 27,429 usD
R e s
R8O 1000 usD
Dominican R 100 0 usD
Republic .
Barbados | RO 80 8000 Usb. .
StKits&Nevis - R 100 0 usb
Colombian Emeralds Castries St. Lucia R 60 0 usD

International Ltd
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OWNERSHIP  SHARE CAPITAL
AS OF DECEMBER 31. 2011 LOCATION COUNTRY TYPE  IN% IN THOUSANDS CURRENCY
SOUTH AMERICA L

Interbaires SA BuenosAlres . Argentina R0 293 usb
Navinten S.A. Montevideo R 100 126 usD
DuyFreeEcuadorSA  Gusequl RoM0son o usD
Dufry do Brasil Duty Free Shop Ltda, | Rlode Janeiro . Brazil | R0 LIRS usb .
EMAC Comercio Import Riode Janeiro ~ Brazil R0 O BRL .
NORTH AMERICA L

DufryAmerica,Inc. Miami USA oo S usD_
Hudson News CompanyInc. | EastRutherford USA ] HR 100 0 usb .
DufryNewark,Inc. Newark USA R0 0L usD
Dufry Houston Duty Free and Houston USA R 75 1 usD
Retail Partnership

s Cveware v e usa T R w e
AirportManagement Services, LLC _ NewYork USA . H/R 100 0 usp
AMS-Olympic Nashville, JV Nashville USA R 83 0 usb
HudsonNews OHare, V. Springfield  USA__ R 70 0 USD
Hudson Retail-NeuNews V| NewYork ... USAL R B O usb .
JEK Air Ventures New York USA R 80 0 usD
e N S S R SN
SeattleAirVentures Oymeia ... | USALL R O usb
AMSTEIMiami, Vo Miami USA R0 0 usD
AMS Hudson LasVegas, V. LasVegas USA RT3 0 UsD
Hudson Group Canada, Inc. ... Vencower ... ! Canada .. | R0 O CAD
DISTRIBUTION CENTERS L

DufryTravelRetailLid Basel Swizerland D 100 5000 CHF
Dufry America Services, Inc. | Miami USA . D 100 398 ] usb
International Operations and Montevideo Uruguay D 100 50 usb
Services Corp.
Eurotrade Corporation (Il Limited Nassau Bahamas D 100 5,580 uUsbD
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-

Ernit & Young Lig

PO, Box
CH-4002 Basel

Phong +4]1 58 286 B6 BS
Fax 4] 58 286 B6 O
Wi, by comich

To the General Meeting of
Dufry AG, Basel

Basel, 6 March 2012

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dufry AG,
Basel, which comprise the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, conselidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement
of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity and notes {pages 82 to 155}, for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Board of Directors’ responsibifity

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standard (IFRS) and the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditar's responsibility

Gur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing
Standards and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consclidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due te fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entity's
preparation and falr presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

Al libgerint of [ha Saitn gl of Cortiftes Aocouniaels srd Pas Conutianiy
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of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Opinian

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
give a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows
in accordance with IFRS and comply with Swiss law.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor
Oversight Act (AOA) and independence (article 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and article
11 AOAY and that there are no circumstances incompatible with cur independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 itern 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 850, we
confirm that an internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation

of cansolidated financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be appraved.

D Haldwnosin

Patrick Fawer David Haldimann
Licensed awdit expert Licensed audit expert
CAuditor in change)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DUFRY AG

Income statement

for the year ended December 31, 2011

IN THOUSANDS OF CHF

D|vwdend income

Totallncome

20m

Personnel expenses

Taxes

Total expenses

40,425

..... 632
65,505

Net earnings (loss)

(25,209)

54,497




Statement of financial position

at December 31, 2011
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Assets
IN THOUSANDS OF CHF NOTE 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Cashandcashequivalents " . 37
Marketable securities i 4 . R 36,948
Receivablesintercompany i e e 84904 267135
Receivables —related party i 2 -
Receivables—thirdparty i ... < IR iz
Othercurrentassets e . 26
Current assets 94,059 304,225
Imvestments 1 1,074,449 1,185,228
ntangibleassels 05025 -
Non-current assets 1,179,474 1,185,228
Total assets 1,273,533 1,489,453
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
IN THOUSANDS OF CHF NOTE 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Payabtes—mtercompany 51,291 243,311
Payables ~relatedparly ... ... o 280
Payables - thind Party i i ] . — 1.082
Bank debt 29,134 -
Other currentliabiities BT L0317
Current liabilities 94,279 284,990
Total liabilities 94,279 284,990
Sharecapital 3 N e 134,881
Legalreserves

Share premium [capital contribution reserves) 972,734 975,061

Generalreserves . 8927 3,600

Reservefortreasuryshares s . R 28,704
Ava\ able earnings 10 52,227 62,217
Shareholders equity 1,179,254 1,204,463
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,273,533 1,489,453
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts are expressed in thousands of CHF, except where otherwise indicated.

1. Significant Investments

Allinvestments of Dufry AG are in Switzerland and consist of:

BOOK VALUE SHARE CAPITAL
SUBSIDIARY

IN THOUSANDS OF CHF PARTICIPATION 2011 2010 2011 2010
Dufrylnternational AG . .. 100% [ Sl 455403 L0 1,000
DufryManagementAG 100% D 190 — 100 U U0 100
Dufry Corporate AG 100% 100 oo 100 100
Duiry Holdings & Investments A6 . 100% 729575 729575 | 1000 1,000
Total 1,074,449 1,185,228

A dividend of CHF 91,000 approved at the Shareholders” Meeting of Dufry Holdings & Investments AG held on
February 11, 2011, has been recognized as financial income of the 2010.

2. Significant shareholders’ participation

IN % 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Group of shareholders consisting of:

1. Travel Retail Investment SCA, Luxembourg

... 2. Olobal Retail Broup S.arl,, Luxembourg Ll o 2R82% 22:62%
Artio Global Management LLC 7.07% 7.07%
CreditSuisse Broup A o 8B 99
Skopos Administradora de Recursos Ltda and

SkoposlInvest Administradora de Recursos International Ltda. 4.43% 4.43%
e c‘a‘bi't.é[' Groupcompamegch ................................................................. - IR oo

' This participation fell below the reporting threshold
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3. Authorized and conditional share capital

As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 Dufry AG had a conditional share capital of 567,296 shares or
CHF 2,836, and there was no authorized share capital.

On March 22, 2010 the Extraordinary General Shareholders” meeting of Dufry AG approved the increase of registered
share capital by CHF 38,811 from CHF 96,070 to CHF 134,881 by the issuance of 7,762,249 registered shares, each
with a parvalue of five Swiss francs. The share capital of CHF 38,811 was settled by a contribution in kind consisting
of 4,896 registered shares of Dufry Holdings & Investments AG, Basel with a nominal value of hundred Swiss francs
each. The value of the contribution in kind amounted to CHF 604,000.

4. Treasury shares

NUMBER OF IN THOUSANDS

SHARES OF CHF

At January 1, 2010 269,134 18,662
Assigned to holders of RSU-awards 2009 o 12668100 18,501)
Sharepurchases 266735 28,539
Revaluation - 8,248
At December 31, 2010 289,059 36,948
Assignedto holders of RSU-awards 2010 [seenote32) ~~~ [281362) | (35,452)
Sharepurchases 100,419 12,503
Revaluation SR (4,505]
At December 31, 2011 108,116 9,494

0. Enterprise risk management

In accordance with the article 663b of the Swiss Code of Obligations the Board of Directors of Dufry AG reviewed
and assessed the risk areas of the Group and where necessary, updated the key controls performed to ensure an
adequate risk monitoring.
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6. Pledged assets

In 2011, Dufry AG had no pledged assets. In 2010, Dufry AG presented the shares of Dufry Holdings & Investments
AG with a book value of CHF 729,575 as a pledge for the bank facilities of its subsidiary Dufry International AG.

7. Guarantee commitment regarding
Swiss Value Added Tax (VAT)

The following companies constitute a group for the Swiss Federal Tax Administration:

Main division VAT:

- DUFRY International AG

- DUFRY Travel Retail AG

- DUFRY Samnaun AG

- DUFRY Participations AG
- DUFRY Russia Holding AG
- DUFRY Basel Mulhouse AG
- DUFRY Management AG

- DUFRY Corporate AG

- DUFRY Holdings & Investments AG
- DUFRYAG

Dufry AG is jointly and severally liable for the Value Added Tax owed by this specific group.

8. Compensation, participations and loans to the members
of the Board of Directors and the Group Executive Committee

(Disclosure according to Swiss Code of Obligations 663b)

Participations in Dufry AG

The members of the Board of Directors of Dufry AG Juan Carlos Torres Carretero (Chairman), Ernst George Bachrach
(Vice Chairman) and Steve Tadler [member) representing the interest of Advent International Corporation and its
funds do not hold any shares or share options on December 31, 2011 or December 31, 2010.

On December31,2011, the following members of the Board of Directors and Group Executive Committee (including
closely related parties) held the following number of shares/number of share options (restricted stock units)/
percentage participation in Dufry AG: Mr. James Cohen, Member 1,257,687/0/4.66% (which includes
1,154,677 shares held by Hudson Media, Inc.); Mr. Mario Fontana, Member 10,000/0/0.04%; Mr. Andrés Holzer
Neumann, Member 2,262,125/0/8.39% (which includes 2,151,913 shares held by Petrus PTE Ltd]; Mr. Joaquin
Moya-Angeler Cabrera, Member 13,390/0/0.05%; Mr. Julidn Diaz Gonzéalez, Chief Executive Officer 60,100/
39,941/0.37%; Mr. Xavier Rossinyol, Chief Financial Officer 45,000/26,400/0.26%; Mr. José Antonio Gea, Global
Chief Operating Officer 37,000/26,400/0.24%; Mr. Pascal C. Duclos, General Counsel 0/21,000/0.08%; Mr. Dante
Marro, COQ Region Europe 0/10,200/0.04%; Mr. Miguel Angel Martinez, COO Region Africa 8,500/10,200/0.07%:;
Mr. René Riedi, COO Region Eurasia 1,500/10,200/0.04%; Mr. José H. Gonzalez, COO Region Central America &
Caribbean0/10,200/0.04%; Mr. José Carlos Costa da Silva Rosa, COO Region South America 2,000/10,200/0.05%
and Mr. Joseph DiDomizio, COO Region North America 13,500/16,800/0.11%.



DUFRY ANNUAL REPORT 2011

On December 31, 2010, the following members of the Board of Directors and Group Executive Committee (including
closely related parties) held the following number of shares/number of share options (restricted stock units)/
percentage participation in Dufry AG: Mr. Mario Fontana, Member 3,893/0/0.01%; Mr. Andrés Holzer Neumann,
Member 2,259,125/0/8.37% (which includes 2,151,913 shares held by Petrus PTE Ltd); Mr. Joaquin Moya-Angeler
Cabrera, Member 15,390/0/0.06%; Mr. James Cohen, Member 1,154,677/0/4.28% hold through Hudson Media,
Inc.; Mr. Julidn Diaz Gonzélez, Chief Executive Officer 39,350/33,250/0.27%; Mr. Xavier Rossinyol, Chief Financial
Officer 23,000/22,000/0.17%; Mr. José Antonio Gea, Global Chief Operating Officer 35,200/22,000/0.21%; Mr.
Pascal C. Duclos, General Counsel0/17,500/0.06%:; Mr. MiguelAngel Martinez, COO Region Africa 5,000/8,500/0.05%;
Mr. René Riedi, COO Region Eurasia 1,500/8,500/0.04%; Mr. José H. Gonzélez, COO Region Central America &
Caribbean 6,550/8,500/0.06%; Mr. José Carlos Costa da Silva Rosa, COO Region South America 0/8,500/0.03% and
Mr. Joseph DiDomizio, COO Region North America 9,520/14,000/0.09%. The remaining members of the Board of
Directors or the Group Executive Committee had no participation on December 31, 2010.

Allthese participations are reportedin accordance with the regulations of the Federal Act on Stock Exchanges and
Securities Trading (SESTA), in force since December 1, 2007, showing the participation (including restricted stock
units) as a percentage of the number of outstanding registered shares on December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively.

9. Compensation of members of the Board of Directors
and Group Executive Committee

The members of the Board of Directors of Dufry AG Juan Carlos Torres Carretero (Chairman), Ernst George Bachrach
(Vice Chairman) and Steve Tadler (member) representing the interest of Advent International Corporation and its
funds do not receive any compensation for the years 2011 or 2010.

In 2011 Dufry paid to its non-executive members of the Board of Directors fees in total amount of CHF 1,350.0
(to Mr. Jorge Born, member CHF 150.0; to Mr. Xavier Bouton, member CHF 150.0; to Mr. James Cohen, member
CHF 150.0; to Mr. José Lucas Ferreira de Melo, member CHF 150.0; to Mr. Mario Fontana, member CHF 200.0; to
Mr. Andrés Holzer Neumann, member CHF 200.0; to Mr. Maurizio Mauro, member CHF 150.0; to Mr. Joaquin
Moya-Angeler Cabrera, member CHF 200.0). In addition to these fees Mr. Xavier Bouton received CHF 250.0 for
strategic consulting services provided to the Group during the year. The social charges related to these fees are
calculated in accordance with the local regulations amounted to CHF 81.8 in total (to Mr. Jorge Born, member
CHF 9.1; to Mr. Xavier Bouton, member CHF 9.1, to Mr. James Cohen, member CHF 9.1; to Mr. José Lucas Ferreira
de Melo, member CHF 9.1; to Mr. Mario Fontana, member CHF 12.1; to Mr. Andrés Holzer Neumann, member
CHF 12.1; to Mr. Maurizio Mauro, member CHF 9.1; to Mr. Joaquin Moya-Angeler Cabrera, member CHF 12.1).
Finally, the total compensation to the non-executive members of the Board of Directors amounted to CHF 1,681.8
in total (to Mr. Jorge Born, member CHF 159.1; to Mr. Xavier Bouton, member CHF 409.1; to Mr. James Cohen,
member CHF 159.1; to Mr. José Lucas Ferreira de Melo, member CHF 159.1; to Mr. Mario Fontana, member
CHF 212.1; to Mr. Andrés Holzer Neumann, member CHF 212.1; to Mr. Maurizio Mauro, member CHF 159.1; to
Mr. Joaquin Moya-Angeler Cabrera, member CHF 212.1).

In 2010 Dufry paid to its non-executive members of the Board of Directors fees in total amount of CHF 914 (to
Mr. Jorge Born, member CHF 63; to Mr. Xavier Bouton, member CHF 100; to Mr. James Cohen, member CHF 100;
to Mr. José Lucas Ferreira de Melo, member CHF 63; to Mr. Mario Fontana, member CHF 175; to Mr. Andrés
Holzer Neumann, member CHF 175; to Mr. Maurizio Mauro, member CHF 63; to Mr. Joaquin Moya-Angeler Cabrera,
member CHF 175). In addition to these fees Mr. Xavier Bouton received CHF 250 for strategic consulting services
provided to the Group during the year. The social charges related to these fees are calculated in accordance with
the local regulations amounted to CHF 55 in total (to Mr. Jorge Born, member CHF 3.8; to Mr. Xavier Bouton,
member CHF 6; to Mr. James Cohen, member CHF 6; to Mr. José Lucas Ferreira de Melo, member CHF 3.8; to
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Mr. Mario Fontana, member CHF 10.6; to Mr. Andrés Holzer Neumann, member CHF 10.6; to Mr. Maurizio Mauro,
member CHF 3.8; to Mr. Joaquin Moya-Angeler Cabrera, member CHF 10.6). Finally, the total compensation to
the non-executive members of the Board of Directors amounted to CHF 1,219 in total (to Mr. Jorge Born, mem-
ber CHF 67.1; to Mr. Xavier Bouton, member CHF 356.0; to Mr. James Cohen, member CHF 106.0; to Mr. José
Lucas Ferreira de Melo, member CHF 67.1; to Mr. Mario Fontana, member CHF 185.6; to Mr. Andrés Holzer
Neumann, member CHF 185.6; to Mr. Maurizio Mauro, member CHF 67.1; to Mr. Joaquin Moya-Angeler Cabrera,
member CHF 185.6).

In the years 2011 and 2010 there were no other compensations paid directly or indirectly to active or former
members of the Board of Directors and there are also no loans or guarantees received or provided to these
Board members, nor to their related parties.

In 2011 the ten members of the Group Executive Committee received the following compensation: i) in cash
CHF 8,765 (Basic salary CHF 4,336, bonus CHF 3,647, allowances in kind CHF 782) and ii] as employer’s social
charges CHF 1,978 and iii) in form of unvested stock options for the biannualaward 2011, i.e. for the years 2011 and
2012 181,541 RSU's of Dufry AG (for this purposes fully considered as a compensation 2011), adding up to a total
compensation of CHF 20,748. These figures include the compensation to Mr. Julian Diaz Gonzalez, Chief Executive
Officer of Dufry AG, who received a compensation: i) in cash CHF 1,789 (Basic salary CHF 912, bonus CHF 844,
allowances in kind CHF 33) and i) as employer’s social charges CHF 513 and iii) in form of unvested stock options
for the biannual award 2011, i.e. for the years 2011 and 2012 39,941 RSU’s of Dufry AG (for this purposes fully
considered as a compensation 2011), adding up to a total compensation of CHF 4,504.

In 2010 the ten members of the Group Executive Committee received the following compensation: i) in cash
CHF 7,286 (Basic salary CHF 4,551, bonus CHF 2,237, allowances in kind CHF 498]) and ii) as employer's social
charges CHF 1,454 andiii) in form of unvested stock options for the annual award 2010, 142,750 RSU's of Dufry AG,
adding up to a total compensation of CHF 14,630. These figures Includes the compensation to Mr. Julidn Diaz
Gonzélez, Chief Executive Officer of Dufry AG, who received a compensation: i) in cash CHF 1,265 (Basic salary
CHF 941, bonus CHF 293, allowances in kind CHF 32) and i) as employer’s social charges CHF 342 and iii) in form
of unvested stock options for the annual award 2010 33,250 RSU's of Dufry AG, adding up to a total compensation
of CHF 2,979.

In the years 2011 and 2010 there were no other compensations paid directly or indirectly to active or former
members of the Group Executive Committee, nor to their related parties and there are also no loans or guar-
antees received or provided to these members, nor to their related parties.

Fordetails regarding conditions of Restricted Stock Unit (RSU] Plan refer to note 30 of the consolidated financial
statements.
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To be carried forward

52,227

62,217
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Ernat & Young Lid

P.0. Box
CH-2002 Basel

Phonse +41 58 266 86 86
Fax +41 58 286 86 00
WAy, comych

To the General Meeting of
Dufry AG, Basel

Basel, 6 March 2012

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of Dufry AG, Basel, which
comprise the statement of financial position, income statement and notes {pages 158 to
164), for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Board of Directors® responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of Swiss law and the company's articles of incorperation.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control
system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further responsible
for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers the internal control system relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
cantrol system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

i ipbar ol Hha Sein inabhuts of Cartiied kooountasts sl Tas Conmultanty



DUFRY ANNUAL REPORT 2011 167

”H””HH‘“”H|||[||||||||I||||"'”'”“““ £l ERNST & YOUNG 2

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 comply with
Swiss law and the company's articles of incorporation,

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor
Oversight Act (AOA) and independence (article 728 Code of Obligation {CO) and article 11
AOA) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our independence,

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we
confirm that an internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation
of financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with
Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial
statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Dhé ; . S b abr'rhldlmmm
Patrick Fawer David Haldimann
Licenssd audil expert Licensed audit expert

{ Auditor in charge)








